
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Attachment Six



RESOLUTION NO. 07-27 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

POLICY DETERMINATION 

ADOPTION OF EXTRATERRITORIAL WATER AND SEWER SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF 
AMERICAN CANYON AND AREAWIDE AUTHORIZATION TO PROVIDE SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as 
"the Commission", is directed under Government Code Section 56133 to regulate the provision of new 
and extended services by cities and special districts outside their jurisdictional boundaries; and 

WHEREAS, the City of American Canyon, hereinafter referred to as "American Canyon," serves 
as successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District and assumed at the time of its 
incorporation the exclusive right to provide water and sewer operations, including infrastructure and 
service arrangements, in certain areas of the unincorporated area that extend beyond its jurisdictional 
boundary; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has prepared studies evaluating the level and range of water and 
sewer services provided by American Canyon as part of the Comprehensive Water Service Study (2004) 
and the Comprehensive Study of Sanitation and Wastewater Treatment Providers (2006); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission held public meetings on March 5,2007 and October 1 and 15,2007 
to discuss the matter of Government Code Section 56133 as it relates to American Canyon; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to reconcile the provisions of Government Code Section 
56 133 with the water and sewer service operations assumed by American Canyon. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 

1. The Commission adopts the extraterritorial water and sewer service area for American Canyon 
shown in Exhibits "A" and "B" (hereafter "ETSA"). 

2. The Commission recognizes and designates American Canyon as the appropriate public water 
and sewer service provider within the ETSA. 

3. The Commission determines that American Canyon has sufficient service capacities and 
administrative controls to provide an adequate level of water and sewer services within the 
ETSA. 

Attachment Six



4. The Commission determines that additional future connections to American Canyon's water 
and sewer systems within that portion of the ETSA composed of the Airport Industrial Area 
are not "new or extended services" under Government Code section 56133 because American 
Canyon, as the successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District, already was 
providing water and sewer services throughout this area on the effective date of Government 
Code section 56133 and because the additional connections will be only involve "infill" 
development, will not encourage urban sprawl, adversely affect open-space and prime 
agricultural lands, or encourage or result in the inefficient extension of governmental services. 

5. American Canyon may not provide new or extended water and sewer services within the ETSA 
without prior written authorization by the Commission; provided, however, that the Airport 
Industrial Area is exempted from this requirement for the reasons set forth in subparagraph 4 
above. 

6. The sewer services to the ETSA set forth in Exhibit "B" shall not exceed the rights of services 
associated within the existing jurisdictional boundary of the Napa Sanitation District, which is 
shown in Exhibit "C." 

7. The sewer services to the ETSA set forth in Exhibit "B" are further limited by the rights of 
sewer services associated with Napa Sanitation District's contractual arrangement to provide 
sewer and recycled water services to lands comprising the Chardonnay Golf Course and the 
Napa County Airport, which are shown in Exhibit "D." 

8. As lead agency, the Commission finds the adoption of this policy determination is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act under Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations $15320 (Class 20). This policy formalizes and reconstitutes American Canyon's 
organizational water and sewer service areas and practices in a manner with de minimis 
impacts to the service areas defined by the Commission. 

The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a meeting held on the 15th 
day of October, 2007, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

Commissioners 

Commissioners 

ABSENT: Commissioners 

ABSTAIN: Commissioners 

ATTEST: Keene S i m o e  

DODD, KELLY, AND WAGENKNECHT 

INMAN AND GINGLES 

NONE 

NONE 

Recorded by: 

Commission Secretary 

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Water Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 22, 2007

Prepared by KS
City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence



£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Water Service Area 

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d NorthK

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek
Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial water service area generally includes all urban designated 
lands (County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Soscol Ridge.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT A

Hess
Vineyards

Napa Sanitation District

Airport Industrial Area

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 22, 2007

Prepared by KS
City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence



£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area 

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d North K

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek
Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial sewer service area includes all urban designated lands 
(County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Fagan Creek.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT B

Hess
Vineyards

Airport Industrial Area

Attachment Six



City of  American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Napa Sanitation District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
February 2007
Prepared by KS

City of  American Canyon
Sphere of  Influence



Fagan Creek
Soscol Ridge (approximate location)

Legend

£¤29

£¤12

£¤221£¤29

£¤12

Napa Sanitation District
Napa Sanitation District
Sphere of  Influence

American Canyon Rd

§̈¦80

Green Island Rd

Lombard Rd

Watson Ln

Tower Rd

Airpark Rd

South K
elly R

d

EXHIBIT C
Attachment Six



GOLF FAt/L/ TIES 
EXHIBIT 0- 1 

Attachment Six



EXHIBIT 0-2 

Attachment Six



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Attachment Six



 

 

 
 

Joan Bennett, Vice Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Greg Pitts, Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of St. Helena 
 

Juliana Inman, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 

 
 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Bill Dodd, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 4th District 

 

Mark Luce, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Brian Kelly, Chair  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Gregory Rodeno, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Laura Snideman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 

We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 
Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 

Fax: (707) 251-1053 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Dana Shigley, City of American Canyon City Manager 

Jason Holley, City of American Canyon Public Works Director 
Greg Baer, City of American Canyon Development Services Engineer 

 
CC:  Jackie Gong, LAFCO Counsel 
 
FROM:   Laura Snideman, Executive Officer 
 
DATE:  August 2014 
 
SUBJECT: American Canyon Water Inquiries 

 

 
Issue  
The City of American Canyon (the “City”) recently inquired about the boundaries of the former 
American Canyon County Water District (the “District”) with the underlying question being 
what, if any, new water connections outside of the City limits require LAFCO authorization 
under California Government Code Section 56133 (“56133”). 
 
Summary Response 
The District boundaries were reduced to coincide with the newly incorporated City and through 
the merger of the District with the City no longer exist.  Subsequent LAFCO actions have 
acknowledged “grandfathering” of service delivery outside of the City’s boundaries and within a 
specific geographic area referred to as the Airport Industrial Area as mapped and memorialized 
by the Commission in October 2007.  All other new or extended water connections provided 
after January 1, 2001 outside of the City and outside of this area must be authorized by LAFCO 
in accordance with the provisions of 56133 and as re-confirmed by the Commission in October 
2007. 
 
Analysis 
The City’s incorporation did not include the entirety of the land within the original District 
boundaries.  This is because most, if not all, of the District’s lands outside of the City’s 
boundaries were formally detached from the District as part of the City’s incorporation process.  
This smaller District was then formally merged with the City as part of the incorporation 
process, legally terminating the existence of the District in accordance with California 
Government Code Section 56056.  Therefore, the District and its former boundaries no longer 
exist. 
 
 

Attachment Six



Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  

Page 2 of 2 

 

Due to older, less precise mapping techniques and multiple parcel splits over a long period of 
time resulting in a number of changes in both APNs and the actual parcel boundaries, it is 
impossible to precisely confirm what happened to some of the parcels in the vicinity of the 
Vintage Ranch Subdivision.  Staff has undertaken a significant research effort sorting through a 
large variety of records in the LAFCO, Counsel, and County Assessor offices and additional 
research into these remaining parcels will not change the conclusions reached.  Regardless of 
whether or not these specific parcels were detached from the District, the facts remain that we 
have clear City boundaries as of today and that the District no longer exists and the merger is 
deemed valid due to the expiration of the time to challenge it. 
 
As to why these questions keep surfacing, I believe there may be confusion about past 
references to the District’s former “service area” versus actual boundaries, and that the actual 
boundaries were far smaller than many perceived them to be.  While various relatively recent 
documents contain written references to a very large service area, no formal LAFCO maps or 
documents could be found documenting this.  In addition, and perhaps more to the point, the 
concept of a service area is not a legal concept under LAFCO law and what matters is that the 
District, whose jurisdictional boundaries at the time were relatively modest and made smaller 
in conjunction with the City’s incorporation as described above, has officially ceased to exist.   
 
Perhaps adding to the confusion was a prior contract between the District and the State 
requiring the District to serve a certain area.  As the City inherited the duties of the District 
during the merger, one might ask what happened to that requirement.  Even if the City has 
assumed the contractual obligation to serve a certain area and subsequent contracts have not 
superseded this clause, any new or extended service outside the City limits requires LAFCO 
authorization under 56133, unless a specific 56133 exception otherwise applies. 
 
In response to prior questions about the City’s provision of water services outside its 
boundaries, the Commission recognized and designated American Canyon as the appropriate 
public water provider for the extraterritorial area as defined by the Commission in October 
2007 and subject to the terms and conditions it set.  In recognizing the City as the appropriate 
provider for this area, the Commission required that any new or extended water services within 
the area must have the prior written authorization of LAFCO in conformance with 56133 with 
the grandfathered exception of the Airport Industrial Area, also as mapped in October 2007. 
 
On May 3, 2011 the City held a meeting on water issues that included references to a “water 
service area.”  As this concept is not a legal concept under LAFCO law, we believe portions of 
the outcome of that meeting and, more specifically, portions of the adopted resolution were in 
error.  Please endeavor to correct this information when the issue is raised again in future 
documents and meetings.  
 
Request for Information 
For record keeping purposes, as soon as feasible and no later than December 31, 2014, please 
provide a list of all parcels outside of the City limits currently receiving water from the City 
including the APN, property address, type & size of connection, and year service began (if 
service pre-dates the City’s incorporation noting “as of incorporation” is sufficient.) 

Attachment Six



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 

Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT D 

Attachment Six



INU'1^ES OF THE MEETING OF THE

I= AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

COU" Pl Y OF APA

May 15, 1991

1. Call to Order. 

THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF NAPA MET Pi
SPECIAL SESSION, WEDNESDAY, MAY 15, 1991, AT 7: 30 P. M. WITH THE

FOLLOWING MEMBERS PRESENT: CHAIRMAN DAME PAULSON, COMMISSIONERS
PAUL BATTISTI, VINCE FERRIOLE, CARLEE LE E WICH AND THOMAS JORDAN. 

2. Public Comment. 

NONE

PUBLIC HEARINGS

AMERICAN CANYON IIr-ORPORATION

A proposal to incorporate as a general law city, the Community of
American Canyon, a 3 1/ 4 square mile area of land located generally
north of the Solano County/ Vallejo City limit line, west of Flosden

Road and the Southern Pacific Railroad tracks, 3/ 4' s of a mile east of. 
the Napa River, and 1/ 2 mile south of Tower Road. 

Environmental Determination: 1990 American Canyon Incorporation Final

Environmental Impact Report was prepared and certified by the
Commission on Apri1 10, 1991. This document will be reviewed and

considered by the Commission prior to taking actions on the
Incorporation project. 
Continued from the Commission' s April 10, 1991 meeting) 

3. - Executive Officer' s Report & Recommendation - The Commission will

consider and take possible actions to approve the American Canyon
Incorporation Project. ( Continued from the Commission' s May 8, 1991

meeting) 
PUBLIC BEAPJ24G HELD

THE COMMISSION ADOPTED RESOLUTION MAKING DETERMINATIONS APPROVING THE

AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION PROJECT AMENDING 4 E ( PAGE 11) TO INCLADE

AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND ADDING AN ADDITIONAL PARAGRAPH WITH REGARD TO
COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 4 TO E MIBIT B '( AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION

TERMS AND CONDITIONS - PAGE B- 9) AS FOLLOWS: 

4. E. THE AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION PROPOSAL WILL PROMOTE THE

CONSTRUCTION OF ADDITIONAL HOUSING, INCLUDING AFFORDABLE

HOUSING, NEEDED TO AOCa* IODATE FUTURE NEW RESIDENTS

RESULTING FROM THE PLANNED INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE
NAPA COUtv'1^Y AI_RPORT ILNWr S'i"i IAL AREA SPECIFIC PLAN A14D FROM

THE AREA' S GENERAL OVER ALL DEVELOPMENT. 

Attachment Six



Local Agency Formation Commission Minutes
May 15, 1991 Page 2

3. Continued

COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 4

9. WITH THE INI'ERr TO INSURE THE ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE
AFFECTED TERRITORY DESCRIBED IN ATTACHMENT # 1, THE TERRIMRY

DESCRIBED IN ATTACHMENT # 1 SHALL BE DETACHED FRCM THE

AMERICAN CANYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE
OF THE AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION, JANUARY 1, 1992. THE

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IS DIRECTED TO CONDUCT PROCEEDINGS TO
CONSIDER THE FORMATION OF COUNTY SERVICE AREA NO. 4 FOR THE

PURPOSE OF PROVIDING PUBLIC SEWER WITHIN THE AETM= 
TERRITORY. IF PROCEEDINGS FOR FORMATION OF COUNTY SERVICE
AREA NO. 4 ARE TERMINATED FOR ANY REASONS, THE SEWER

FACILITIES AMID IMPROVEMENM SHALL BE UNDER THE OWNERSHIP AND
CONTROL OF THE CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON AS SUCCESSOR TO THE
AMERICAN CANYON COUNTY WATER DISTRICT. 

BJFLP R- 91- 18

4. Sphere of Influence - The Commission will consider and take possible
actions to establish the City of American Canyon Sphere of Influence. 
Continued from the Commissions May 8, 1991 meeting) 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD

THE COMMISSION ADOPTED RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CITY SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
FOR THE CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON AMENDING 4 D ( PAGE 5) TO INCLUDE

AFFORDABLE HOUSING AS FOLLOWS: 

4. D. THE AMERICAN CANYON INCORPORATION PROPOSAL WILL PROMOTE THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ADDITIONAL HOUSING, INCLUDING AFFORDABLE

HOUSING, NEEDED TO ACCOMMODATE FUTURE NEW RESIDENTS

RESULTING FROM THE PLANNED INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE
NAPA COUNTY AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND FRCM
THE AREA' S ( ETMAL OVER AIL DEVELOPMENT. 

JBFLP R- 91- 19

COMMISSION BUSINESS

5. Commission to consider and take possible action to adopt the
Commission' s 1951- 92 budget. ( Continued from the Commission' s May 8, 
1991 meeting) 
CONTINUED TO JUNE 12, 1991

Attachment Six



Local Agency Formation Coq nission
May 15, 1991 Page 3

CCMMISSIONER JORDAN REQUESTED THAT AN ITEM BE INCLUDED ON THE JUKE 12, 1991

AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING PER DIEM. 

6. Adjournment. 

ADJOURNED TO THE REGULAR FOCAL AGENCY FORMATION CCMISSION MEETING

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 12, 1991 AT 7: 30 P. M. 

DXZt PAUTSON
Chairman

ATTEST: 

R. CHARLES WILSON

Executive Officer

AGNES DEL ZOMPO

Clerk of the Board

KEY

Vote: L = Carlee Leftwich; F = Vince Ferriole; P = Dave Paulson; 

J = Thomas Jordan; B = Paul Battisti; K = Harold Kelly ( Alternate) 

M = John Mikolaicik ( Alternate); H = Lester Hardv ( Alternate) 

Notations under Vote: N = No; A = Abstained; X = Excused

Attachment Six



s. 

N.: PA COUNTY DEPARTMENT Of PUBLIC woos
NOTICE OF APPROVAL

LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT APPLICATION

OF THE LANDS OF AMCAN LAND RULINNIG. INC. 
ASSESSOR PARCEL NtJNfRCRS: 059. 040' W 1, 043 AND 044

Notice is hereby +itven by the Direclar 01-( i, e Napa countt1t r an 1pphc, riun far a Lit! Line Ad' timcnt aeeu; L, ( c a t 1 ) 
1? epirtmrnt of Publicux work, 

h;J5 been rcvi,uwcd
pursuant ( a Jcccion 17. 1! i t}, 7 o1'; hr" b r e st;ut! d add-lVent cxisttng parrcis, 

tt) unkf to cl i tpl} with tilt re u spa Cpunty SuGdi' is un O'"d ance aridy iremrnts st3tCd tlterCitt. 

application is hrreb Jrrntcd ,4ppra ej ss 11' the dare „ 1' tlt sDtlbliation

C. ? its 13t' n1! ( J0t:u.!Vr!ts whitih rrlaie to tnr: ah,)%.c Je, crihcd roc nlay ithe vl'ficc ut' iht llir c;nrp( puhllc W'urftS at ' J ( r rt rnured: u
1195 T nird St., ROOM 201. 

nterelinin par( ics hJve dny; from thethe Ole ol' this publicackin eel , tpp;, 1 thl} JrciSion h> filing , V tlCe or Appv:t!' vith the Dirccwr nF1 ub) ic

D.41 LD: ,twit 2, 20oo

rE.ST: r

f , MiLhaal A. Shepher J

yEngincering Scrvicr5

Pl1F}'. 15H ! vapa Rtrgister. Jtlne . 3Q G

RILL 7' 0- NAPA CO(1NTY. DEPT, 01' PE18L1C' wORKs
C' C. File

b t,w Linr AJ;,. gmcA, " Trw_ 
rl. a4 q Awc., No' Kt e. 0

Attachment Six



of

1
XI_5-).T1NQ PARCELS ` 

NEWEJ. !' 

TENTATIVE MAP ` 1993- 00240S 0.R. /
r

FOR A LOT I INE AC\; US iMr.NT 21 SL! RVF'Y5 69 / 

OF THE LANDS" OF

AMCAN LAND HOLDING, INC. 
URVEY:SE57

NEW[..,;_ `\"' <? 9 `' criS9 1? 1oa

11' 90J4

elvFioa 

fix• y.'., :,\ y \ t . -
yF+. 

N: 4' 34' SC. W _.
1, 

WWALLI' I

I

LPNr; P, L alr C , ! NC
1 7Q7- L574 i 0.R. 

5L
3( ` JRVEl, 5 34 I 

r, ASSFSSCIR PARS EL NUMBER 0551
140 •.044 e) 

S86

27 c.7"w , Ou G NL K,S, 100

l

20C
140

ASSESSOR

PARCEL NUMBER. rl^__ IT --'S V 054

040- 043-• ` f' uv _,,, 
L.

IU' T LINE A _ --- 

W

v MQUSC 100 IJ P. M K58

0330 w llp.. 
NSSE55Cft PAR Ft. Nt) MBER GS 040-

Odt 111 akACRE

1
S05S, 1vNB5FN794]48' w 826d3r71 f.1307. 9; Pw .—

AS

Pit- LINE • 

589' 19' 55- w
075. 41 "!83' oe' S?lv 711. 8r (Ai I'"G6'1?" W EASEIIENI( 10' war) 46

OR, PG tot
irj (w,p, "'-.—__- ---- "- WRESS b ECFESS 12' 36' Yw! 11J

49 ?6'W EASEUEN! ( 25' WiIEI I WA COVN" ROADWAY 211.

51' R 190 OR PC •
5.) CA, SEUENT ( 0 04

ACRE) 8 1454 Q. R. 
PC 97 tAl 1:; HIL0'< tI1JS

HOSPITAL MECiL: A:_ t:Fl47i .r( Cr- M( JR-rH[
Rr4 r'ALIFOICN., A IliQ O.F(. 852
31 ;oTL; r, E:

BAKFrt i995- 00b4? 9 C'
rS Prrjer- t ' dorre' Lot

Line Adjustrrent• Date: 2 14%(.)0

SCcle: 1. = 800 Landteeb

Consultants Civil & Srrucrural

Emgineers KP
3845 Beacon Avenue

Suite

0 (510) 505-9501 Fremont. CA 94538 Fax (
510) 505- 9503

Attachment Six



J

PROPOSED PARCELS
MEVIE LL r

TENTATI' VC MAP 002doS cm?. 

FOR A LC 1 ! INC ADJUSTVEN T 21 SURVEYS 617J

OF THE LANDS 01F
2t t? t

tsrq g, 

I t HELL

AMCAN LAND HOLDING, / NC. i; i- 002405
r ,,., -... -. Lam% SURVEYS h7—bq

NEWt LL z

O. R. z

c 

01 - 
114i., i'.. N` 4 661 U ' 5, r... 

i'' N1a 34' Saw i ' • -
340  4 50 0. 

706, 

77'' WV
ah

NrY _

L! see
pl,

p PROPOSO) 

PARCEL h" 4&

ICAN) s
LAND

HOLDING, INC 1997-
25.-541, 0. RTro

33• Ix ACRC ; q 1
s

n 32 SU' RVrI r 

l

S86' 27' 03"W 99'. B )' •, OUT y nL INC/) ` r

1, 

J r• Q' [ 

p yr. r30' 
PRO°

USEU PARCEL ' A' r 
1

f 15 SI. C?PE r1
501

ACRES J LIM! T LINE N

v v o CL` 

MUSE n v - 

N_

69'02' 30 w 147
R =

1 170. 00' A-
IE' 3.'36' PGkF,'

Gkq PiDU'\ t 56?'
SB' S`.R 19) 5.41 NdYf/)' 5lw' 12. 8]' Iq} ( E1i S13' Clil.}'iY 9

06 7 R 'G : 41C 420NZ' 
So . i-3'1Nr - b W INGAtS: 

k i CfeE55z

NAPA CWNTY 40A WAY 211. 5a' — 29. F<' a u ON PG , 47 r_. 

EASEufNI ( C.04 ACRQ Y' 
8 1484 O.R. M. 97 (A) CHII. URF. NS HOSPITAL tr1Ec):cAL C=f; Ti: R 0: 

NOR- fHEF:N CALIFr; f:f:1. 4 1613
U,R. HS' L IB; 

3* rUDESAKE P. I445-Uf;
fi47y U.ft. Landteeb Consultants

Pi0,,L-
0 Pdc me: Lot. Lire Adjustmr. rt Civil do Structural Engineerst?clC: 

2; 14 ' i_Q 3345 Seaton Avenue Suite 0 (510) 505- 950 ccle: I " _ ?

iCJU Fremont, CA 94538 Fox ( 510), 5CS- 3503

Attachment Six



EXHIBIT E 

Attachment Six



 1700 Second Street, Suite 268
Napa, CA  94559

(707) 259-8645
FAX (707) 251-1053

http://napa.lafco.ca.gov

 

Local Agency Formation Commission 
LAFCO of Napa County Lo

ca
l A

ge
ncy Formation Comm

ission

Napa County

 
 

March 5, 2007  
Agenda Item No. 8a 

 
February 27, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
FROM: Keene Simonds, Executive Officer  
  Jacqueline Gong, Commission Counsel 
 
SUBJECT: California Government Code §56133 (Discussion)  
 The Commission will review a report from staff regarding California 

Government Code §56133 and its role in approving new or extended 
services that are provided by contract or agreement outside an agency’s 
jurisdictional boundary.  The report is being presented for discussion.  

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

On January 1, 1994, California Government Code §56133 was added to require cities and 
special districts to receive written approval from Local Agency Formation Commissions 
(LAFCOs) to provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside their 
jurisdictional boundaries, but within their spheres of influence.  G.C. §56133 was enacted 
by the Legislature to respond to cities and special districts circumventing the LAFCO 
process by extending services by contract instead of annexing the affected territory.  Initial 
exemptions included agreements or contracts involving two or more public agencies and 
the transfer of non-potable or non-treated water.  An additional exemption was added in 
1999 allowing LAFCOs to approve the extension of new or extended services outside an 
agency’s sphere of influence to address a public health or safety issue, and greater 
specificity regarding the exemption involving contracts or agreements between two or 
more public agencies was added in 2001.  In 2003, the Legislature grandfathered the 
effective date of G.C. §56133 to January 1, 2001.  
 
It has been the practice of LAFCO of Napa County not to require cities or special districts 
to receive Commission approval before providing new or extended services by contract or 
agreement outside their jurisdictional boundaries.  This practice was established in 1994 
and based on an initial review by the Commission of G.C. §56133, which originally 
included a broad exemption involving contracts or agreements involving two or more 
public agencies.  Drawing from this original text, the Commission concluded that 
preexisting agreements between local agencies underlying outside service provision in the 
unincorporated areas were exempt under G.C. §56133.  However, the exemption the 
Commission relied on in developing its aforementioned practice was amended in 2001 as 
part of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act to become 
more restricted and is no longer applicable.  This change in law coupled with increasing 
pressure for development in south Napa County  requires that the Commission review its 
practice and policy regarding its role under G.C. §56133.   

 

Jack Gingles, Chair 
Mayor, City of Calistoga 
 

Cindy Coffey, Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Juliana Inman, Alternate Commissioner  
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Vice-Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 
Bill Dodd, Commissioner 

County of Napa Supervisor, 4th District 
 

Mark Luce, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Brian J. Kelly, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Vacant, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 2 of 12 
 
This report outlines the history and development of out-of-agency service arrangements 
in south Napa County relating to sewer and water and also considers the options available 
to the Commission in addressing its obligations under G.C. §56133.  Notably, the report 
focuses on the relationship between the City of American Canyon as a key service 
provider of both sewer and water in south Napa County and the County of Napa as the 
land use authority.1  Staff is presenting the report for discussion and is seeking direction 
from the Commission regarding its preferences in addressing the issue of new and 
extended services in unincorporated south Napa County.   
 
 
Background  
 
Development and Timeline of G.C. §56133 
On October 11, 1993, Governor Pete Wilson signed Assembly Bill 1335 (Mike Gotch) 
that included a number of amendments to the section of Government Code administered 
by LAFCO.  This included the addition of G.C. §56133, which expanded the regulatory 
power of LAFCO by directing cities and special districts to begin receiving Commission 
approval to provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside their 
jurisdictional boundaries, but within their spheres of influence.  Prior to 1994, it was not 
uncommon for a city or special district to provide services outside its jurisdictional 
boundary after LAFCO had denied the annexation of the affected territory.   With this in 
mind, G.C. §56133 was enacted to assist LAFCO in fulfilling its mandate to curtail urban 
sprawl by requiring service providers to come to LAFCO before extending service into 
the unincorporated area.   
 
The original text of G.C. §56133 was concise and provide three specific exemptions: 1) 
contracts or agreements involving two or more public agencies; 2) contracts for the 
transfer of non-potable or non-treated water; and 3) contracts or agreements involving the 
provision of surplus water to agricultural lands.  Following its enactment, several 
amendments were made to clarify LAFCO’s role in regulating outside service provision 
under G.C. §56133.  A summary of the key amendments follows.  
 

• In 1997, Assembly Bill 637 (Barbara Alby) amended G.C. §56133 to exempt 
local publicly owned power utilities that provide electric services.  (Effective 
January 1, 1998)  

 
• In 1999, Senate Bill 807 (Committee on Agriculture and Water Resources) 

amended G.C. §56133 to allow LAFCO to authorize a city or special district 
to provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundary and 
sphere of influence to respond to an existing or impending public health or 
safety issue.  (Effective January 1, 2000)  

                                                           
1  The Napa Sanitation District also provides sewer service in south Napa County north of Fagan Creek.  

However, all of the District’s sewer services in south Napa County are provided within its jurisdictional 
boundary and sphere of influence.  

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 3 of 12 
 

• In 2000, Assembly Bill 2838 (Hertzberg) amended G.C. §56133 to restrict the 
original exemption involving contracts or agreements between two or more 
public agencies.  This amendment specified that the exemption be allowed 
“where the public service to be provided is an alternate to, or substitute for, 
public services already provided an existing public service provider and where 
the level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of service 
contemplated by the existing service provider.”  (Effective January 1, 2001) 

 
• In 2003, Assembly Bill 2227 (Jane Harman) amended G.C. §56133 to 

grandfather the effective date to January 1, 2001.  (Effective January 1, 2003) 
 
*  A copy of the current text of G.C. §56133 is provided as Attachment A.  
 
American Canyon: Incorporation and Special District Reorganizations
On January 1, 1992, the City of American Canyon was incorporated as a general-law city 
with an approximate resident population of 7,200.  Prior to incorporation, the American 
Canyon area received municipal services from three special districts.  Water and sewer 
was provided by the American Canyon County Water District (ACCWD), residential 
street lighting was provided by County Service Area (CSA) No. 1, and fire protection 
was provided by the American Canyon Fire Protection District (ACFPD).  In approving 
the incorporation, the Commission merged and transferred all rights, duties, and 
obligations of ACCWD and CSA No. 1 to American Canyon.  The Commission also 
established ACFPD as a subsidiary district of American Canyon, which transferred the 
governance of the District to the City Council.   
 
In adopting an incorporated boundary for American Canyon, the Commission included 
all of the lands that were within the jurisdictional boundary of ACCWD with the 
exception of approximately 155 acres located immediately south of Fagan Creek in the 
South Kelly Road/Tower Road area.  For administrative purposes, the Commission 
detached these 155 acres from ACCWD on the effective date of American Canyon’s 
incorporation and directed the County of Napa to proceed with forming a new CSA to 
provide sewer service to the area.2  The Commission also specified that if the County 
failed to form a new CSA then American Canyon would assume ownership and control 
of sewer service operations within the affected 155 acres.  Accordingly, because the 
County did not form a new CSA, American Canyon assumed control and ownership of 
sewer service operations within the South Kelly Road/Tower Road area. 
 
 
 

                                                           
2  In incorporating American Canyon, the Commission did not directly address the issue of how new or 

extended water services would be provided in south unincorporated Napa County.  However, as part of 
the Executive Officer report that was prepared during the incorporation proceedings, staff indicated its 
expectations that those future water service connections in the unincorporated area would require out-of-
agency service agreements between American Canyon and affected property owners. 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 4 of 12 
 
American Canyon: Successor Agency 
As the successor agency to ACCWD, American Canyon inherited existing sewer and 
water service customers located outside its incorporated boundary.3  Also passed to 
American Canyon from ACCWD were a number of contracts and agreements.  This 
included two agreements involving the Napa Sanitation District (NSD) and the Napa 
County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (NCFCWCD) that established 
locally defined sewer and water service areas for ACCWD, respectively.   Based on these 
two agreements, as successor agency, it has been the practice of American Canyon to 
provide sewer and water services to new development within these locally defined areas 
through agreements (will-serve letters) with affected property owners.  A summary of 
both agreements follows.  
 

Sewer: In 1982, ACCWD and NSD formalized a long-standing practice by 
adopting resolutions designating Fagan Creek as the boundary 
separating each agency’s respective sewer services in south Napa 
County.  As successor agency to ACCWD, this agreement defines a 
local sewer service area for American Canyon that includes all lands 
south of Fagan Creek, east of the Napa River, and west and north of 
Solano County.  In 1998, as part of a dissolution agreement to a joint-
powers arrangement, the two agencies reaffirmed Fagan Creek as the 
delimitation of their respective sewer service areas.  This dissolution 
agreement also identified Fagan Creek as the delimitation involving 
future recycled water services between the two agencies.   

 
Water: In 1966, ACCWD entered into a water supply agreement with 

NCFCWCD for annual entitlements to the State Water Project.  This 
agreement specified that ACCWD shall supply water to lands located 
south of Soscol Ridge, east of the Napa River, and west and north of 
Solano County.  As successor agency to ACCWD, American Canyon 
has inherited its annual entitlement to water drawn from the State Water 
Project as well as its locally defined water service area.  

 
*  A map depicting the sewer and water service areas inherited by American Canyon as a 

result of ACCWD’s earlier agreements with NSD and NCFCWCD is provided as 
Attachment B.  

 
* A map depicting the jurisdictional boundary and sphere of influence of ACCWD before 

its merger with American Canyon is provided as Attachment C.  
 
 
                                                           
3  It appears that most of these outside customers were located within the aforementioned 155 acres of 

unincorporated land located immediately south of Fagan Creek that had been jurisdictionally part of 
ACCWD prior to its merger with American Canyon.  Because it was not required of cities or special 
districts prior to 1994, LAFCO does not have records identifying whether ACCWD had entered into 
service agreements outside of its jurisdictional boundary.   

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 5 of 12 
 
Discussion 
 
Intent of G.C. §56133 
The legislative intent of G.C. §56133 is to strengthen the ability of LAFCOs to fulfill 
their mandate to promote the orderly development of local agencies and to discourage 
urban sprawl.  As noted, G.C. §56133 was enacted in response to cities and special 
districts circumventing the LAFCO process by providing new or extended services 
outside their jurisdictional boundaries by contract instead of annexing the affected 
territory.  G.C. §56133 reinforces the meaning of an agency’s adopted jurisdictional and 
sphere boundaries, which represent the Commission’s principal tools in planning for 
future growth.  
 
New or Extended Services  
In addressing the matter of G.C. §56133, it is important to note that its provisions pertain 
only to new and extended outside services.  Services extended before January 1, 2001 are 
specifically exempt and are not within the purview of the Commission.  Drawing from 
this distinction, the Commission’s review of outside services as it relates to G.C. §56133 
is predicated upon first defining a “new” or “extended” service.  It is the general practice 
of LAFCO to administratively interpret new and extended services to involve the actual 
delivery of services or the intensification of services to a specific property.   
 
In preparing this report, the County of Napa has conveyed to LAFCO its view that the 
agreement the City of American Canyon inherited between ACCWD and NCFCWCD for 
annual water entitlements to the State Water Project establishes an obligation for the City 
to provide water south of the Soscol Ridge.  The County asserts this agreement already 
provides for the extension of water service by American Canyon within the affected area 
and thus is an extended service that predates January 1, 2001 and as such is not subject to 
G.C. §56133.   
 
Constitutional Provision  
Also in the course of preparing this report staff has become aware of a potential 
inconsistency between G.C. §56133 and the California Constitution.  Specifically, Article 
11, Section 9 of the California Constitution states that a “municipal corporation” may 
establish and provide light, water, power, heat, and transportation outside its boundaries.  
Absent judicial resolution of this issue, it is the general consensus of most LAFCOs to 
defer and apply G.C. §56133 when cities seek to provide new or extended water service 
outside their incorporated boundaries.  However, in applying G.C. §56133, a LAFCO is 
vulnerable to a constitutional challenge from a city or other interested party.   
 
* A copy of Article 11, Section 9 of the Constitution is provided as Attachment F.  
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 6 of 12 
 
Analysis  
 
Intent of G.C. §56133 
The enactment of G.C. §56133 reflects the policy of the Legislature that the Commission 
participate in the decision-making process involving the extension of services in 
unincorporated areas.  Although annexations to cities and special districts are generally 
preferred for providing services, LAFCO law and staff recognize that out-of-agency 
service agreements can be appropriate alternatives in addressing local conditions and 
circumstances.  Where the extension of service to an unincorporated area is appropriate, a 
challenge for all LAFCOs is determining whether the extension should be the result of an 
annexation, a concurrent annexation and sphere amendment, or an out-of-agency service 
agreement.  An additional challenge for this Commission with regard to addressing its 
obligations under G.C. §56133 in south Napa County is taking into account local 
conditions and circumstances that are the result of the City of American Canyon serving 
as the successor agency to ACCWD.   
 
Past LAFCO Practice 
It has been the practice of the Commission to acknowledge that American Canyon’s 
sewer service area extends outside its incorporated boundary north to Fagan Creek based 
upon the agreement the City inherited between ACCWD and NSD.  It has also been the 
practice of the Commission to acknowledge that American Canyon’s water service area 
extends outside its incorporated boundary north to Soscol Ridge based upon the 
agreement the City inherited between ACCWD and NCFCWCD.  As previously noted, 
these practices were drawn from an initial review by the Commission of G.C. §56133, 
which originally provided a broad exemption involving contracts or agreements involving 
two or more public agencies.  Drawing from this original text, the Commission concluded 
that the existing agreements between local agencies underlying outside service provision 
in the unincorporated areas were exempt under G.C. §56133.  However, as noted earlier, 
this exemption was amended in 2001 to become more restricted and is no longer 
applicable.   
 
New and Extended Services 
In the absence of an adopted definition, it is the presumption of staff that new or extended 
services under C.G. §56133 occurs when actual services are delivered or measurably 
increased to accommodate a change or intensification of land use for a specific and 
identifiable property.  With this in mind, staff is presuming that any unincorporated 
properties that are not already receiving service, or that currently receive service but will 
experience a change or intensification in land use, are subject to the provisions of G.C. 
§56133 as of its effective date of January 1, 2001.  However, in addressing local 
conditions and circumstances in south Napa County, staff recognizes that any developed 
or undeveloped properties that were located within the jurisdictional boundary of 
ACCWD before its merger with the City of American Canyon are not subject to LAFCO 
review under G.C. §56133.   
 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 7 of 12 
 
 
Staff acknowledges the County of Napa’s view that the 1966 agreement American 
Canyon inherited between ACCWD and NCFCWCD provides for the extension of water 
service by the City south of Soscol Ridge and is not subject to G.C. §56133.  The issue of 
how to address and reconcile the agreement between American Canyon and NCFCWCD 
and the provisions of G.C. §56133 is a key challenge for LAFCO with long-term policy 
implications.  It is the perspective of staff that the two issues, the NCFCWCD agreement 
and G.C. §56133, are not mutually exclusive.  American Canyon can provide services to 
the lands south of Soscol Ridge as anticipated under its inherited NCFCWCD agreement 
while LAFCO can prescribe the manner and timing of when those services are extended.   
 
Constitutional Provision 
The provision under the California Constitution specifying that cities are authorized to 
provide water, light, power, heat, and transportation outside their incorporated boundaries 
creates an uncertainty with respect to the extent that LAFCOs can enforce G.C. §56133. 
However, until case law is established, it would appear reasonable and appropriate for 
LAFCOs to cautiously defer to G.C. §56133 under the tenet that it prescribes and 
regulates the constitutional right of a city to serve outside its incorporated boundary. 
 
 
Commission Options 
 
Drawing from the foregoing discussion and analysis, staff has identified five broad 
options for the Commission to consider specifically as it relates to addressing its role 
under G.C. §56133 in south Napa County.  These options are being presented for 
discussion only and are briefly summarized and evaluated below.  

 
• Option A: General Enforcement 

The Commission would require that all affected agencies in south Napa 
County, including American Canyon and the Napa Sanitation District, submit 
requests to provide new or extended services by agreement or contract outside 
their jurisdictional boundaries, but within their spheres.  Under this option, the 
Commission would consider concurrent annexation and sphere of influence 
amendments if the proposed out-of-agency agreement involved territory 
outside the affected agency’s sphere.  Exemptions would include agreements 
between two or more public agencies under specific conditions, the transfer of 
non-potable or non-treated water, or a public health or safety issue.  
 
Advantages  Disadvantages  
 

• Consistent with G.C. §56133. 
 
 
 
 

 

• Does not address local conditions 
and circumstances underlying 
service arrangements that were 
established prior to C.G. §56133. 

 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 8 of 12 
 

 

• Would create an unknown impact 
on the County of Napa in 
securing municipal services for 
planned development in south 
Napa County as contemplated in 
its General Plan. 

 

• Would require that LAFCO 
expend considerable staff 
resources to administer. 

 
• Option B:  Sphere of Influence Amendments  

The Commission would amend the spheres of influence for all affected 
agencies in south Napa County, including American Canyon and the Napa 
Sanitation District, to encompass their locally defined service areas.  All other 
components of Option A would apply. 
 
Advantages  Disadvantages  
 

• Consistent with G.C. §56133. 
 

• Would help formalize service 
provision in south Napa County. 

 

• Would clarify where LAFCO 
would be inclined to allow services 
to be provided in south Napa 
County.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Does not address local conditions 
and circumstances underlying 
service arrangements that were 
established prior to G.C. §56133. 

 

• Would diminish the meaning and 
intent of spheres of influence as 
they relate to signaling future 
growth and annexation by the 
affected agencies.   

 

• Would likely create conflicts for 
LAFCO in terms of applying this 
same policy with other agencies 
in Napa County as it relates to 
promoting orderly and logical 
development.   

 
• Option C: County Service Area  

The Commission would encourage the County of Napa to either seek 
activation of County Service Area No. 3’s latent sewer and water service 
powers or create a new county service area in south Napa County.  The 
affected agency would either contract for sewer (south of Fagan Creek) and 
water services with another public agency, such as American Canyon, or 
provide services directly.  
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 9 of 12 
 

 
Advantages  Disadvantages  
 

• Consistent with G.C. §56133. 
 

• Would help formalize service 
provision in south Napa County. 

 

• Would be consistent with the 
original purpose of CSA No. 3 at 
the time of its formation in 1978.   

 

• Would qualify as an exemption 
under G.C. §56133(e) and would 
not require LAFCO to approve any 
corresponding arrangements for 
new or extended services within 
the affected agency’s 
jurisdictional boundary. 

 

• Would create additional and 
unknown administrative and 
operational costs for the County 
of Napa.  

 

• Effectiveness would be dependent 
on the ability of the affected 
agency to contract or develop 
sufficient water supplies.    

 
 
 

 
• Option D: Local Policy – Reconciliation  

The Commission would establish a local policy to reconcile the provisions of 
G.C. §56133 with the sewer and water service areas inherited by American 
Canyon as successor agency to American Canyon County Water District.  A 
local policy would recognize and allow American Canyon to provide new or 
extended sewer (south of Fagan Creek) and water (south of Soscol Ridge) 
services by contract or agreement outside its jurisdictional and sphere 
boundaries while allowing for Commission review and approval, either 
through a comprehensive or individual arrangement.4  
 
Advantages  Disadvantages  
 

• Would reconcile the provisions of 
G.C. §56133 with local conditions 
and circumstances underlying 
service arrangements that were 
established prior the code section’s 
enactment in 1994. 

 

• Would formally recognize the 
sewer and water service areas 
inherited by American Canyon as 
successor agency to ACCWD. 

 

• Effectiveness would be dependent 
on all affected agencies agreeing 
to follow a local policy.   

 
 
 
 

                                                           
4 The Napa Sanitation District’s jurisdictional boundary includes all unincorporated lands north of Fagan 

Creek that are designated for an urban use by the County of Napa as the affected land use authority.  This 
includes a significant portion of CSA No. 3.   

5 LAFCO Resolution No. 03-34. 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 10 of 12 
 

 

• Would help formalize service 
provision in south Napa County. 

 

• Would be consistent with an 
underlying tenet of the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000 that 
LAFCO consider local conditions 
and circumstances.  

 

• Would be consistent with a written 
determination that was adopted as 
part of LAFCO’s Comprehensive 
Water Service Study.5 

 
• Option E: Local Policy – Preexisting New and Extended Services 

The Commission would establish a local policy determining that the 1966 
agreement that the City of American Canyon inherited between ACCWD and 
NCFCWCD adequately establishes  the extension of water service by the City 
south of Soscol Ridge and is not subject to G.C. §56133.   
 
Advantages  Disadvantages  
 

• Would formally recognize local 
conditions and circumstances 
underlying water service 
arrangements that were established 
prior to the enactment of G.C. 
§56133. 

 
• Would be consistent with the past 

practice of LAFCO to acknowledge 
the water service area inherited by 
American Canyon as the successor 
agency to ACCWD. 

 

• Would diminish the intent of G.C. 
§56133 for LAFCOs to be part of 
the decision-making process 
involving the extension of outside 
services into unincorporated 
territory. 

 
• Would remove LAFCO from any 

future review of future outside 
service arrangements in south 
Napa County. 

 
• Establishes a policy precedent 

that LAFCO would apply to 
similar agreements involving 
NCFCWCD in Napa County with 
unknown consequences.  

 
• Does not address the issue of 

outside sewer service as it relates 
to G.C. §56133. 

 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 11 of 12 
 
Summary 
 
All five options discussed in this report present different advantages and disadvantages 
for the Commission in meeting its obligations under G.C. §56133 as it relates to south 
Napa County.  Because no specific application for an out-of-agency agreement has been 
submitted to LAFCO, staff does not offer a recommendation and has limited its analysis 
to general comments aimed at highlighting policy issues.  Towards this end, summary 
comments for the five options discussed in this report follows.  
 

• Option A (General Enforcement) and Option B (Sphere Amendments) do not 
appear to be appropriate alternatives because they do not address local conditions 
and circumstances underlying service arrangements in south Napa County that 
were established prior to G.C. §56133.  Additionally, Option A would create an 
unknown financial impact on the County of Napa in securing municipal services 
for planned and orderly development in south Napa County, while Option B 
would diminish the meaning and intent of spheres as they relate to signaling 
future growth and annexation by the affected agencies.   

 
• Option C (County Service Area) would formalize service provision in 

unincorporated south Napa County and reflect the original purpose in forming 
CSA No. 3.  However, this alternative would create unknown administrative and 
operational costs and is dependent on a number of externalities, such as 
contracting or developing an adequate water supply.  

 
• Option D (Local Policy – Reconciliation) appears to be the preferred alternative 

because it would reconcile the provisions of G.C. §56133 with preexisting local 
conditions and circumstances.  However, the effectiveness of this option is 
dependent on all affected agencies agreeing to work together in developing and 
following a local policy.  

 
• Option E (Local Policy – Preexisting New and Extended Services) would be 

consistent with the past practice of LAFCO to acknowledge the water service area 
American Canyon inherited upon its incorporation from ACCWD.  However, this 
option does not address the issue of sewer and would diminish the intent of G.C. 
§56133 for LAFCOs to be part of the decision-making process involving the 
provision of outside services into unincorporated areas. 

 
 
Commission Discussion  
 
This report is being presented to the Commission for discussion.  Staff is seeking 
direction from the Commission regarding its preferences in addressing its practice and 
policy under G.C. §56133 as it relates to south Napa County.  Following the meeting, 
staff will circulate a copy of this report for review to the County of Napa, City of 
American Canyon, and the Napa Sanitation District and will convey any direction 
received from the Commission.  

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133  
March 5, 2007 
Page 12 of 12 
 
Attachments: 
 

A) California Government Code §56133 
B) Map of the City of American Canyon (depicting inherited sewer and water service areas) 
C) Map of the American Canyon County Water District (at time of merger) 
D) Map of the City of American Canyon and County Service Area No. 3 
E) Map of the City of American Canyon and the Napa Sanitation District 
F) Article 11, Section 9 of the California Constitution  

Attachment Six



California Government Code Section 56133   
 

(a) A city or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside 
its jurisdictional boundaries only if it first requests and receives written approval from the 
commission in the affected county. 
 
(b) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 
change of organization. 
 
(c) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries and outside its sphere of influence to respond to an 
existing or impending threat to the public health or safety of the residents of the affected 
territory if both of the following requirements are met: 
 

   (1) The entity applying for the contract approval has provided the commission with 
documentation of a threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected 
residents. 

 

(2) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water 
corporation as defined in Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, or sewer system 
corporation as defined in Section 230.6 of the Public Utilities Code, that has filed a 
map and a statement of its service capabilities with the commission. 
 

(d) The executive officer, within 30 days of receipt of a request for approval by a city or 
district of a contract to extend services outside its jurisdictional boundary, shall determine 
whether the request is complete and acceptable for filing or whether the request is 
incomplete.  If a request is determined not to be complete, the executive officer shall 
immediately transmit that determination to the requester, specifying those parts of the request 
that are incomplete and the manner in which they can be made complete.  When the request 
is deemed complete, the executive officer shall place the request on the agenda of the next 
commission meeting for which adequate notice can be given but not more than 90 days from 
the date that the request is deemed complete, unless the commission has delegated approval 
of those requests to the executive officer.  The commission or executive officer shall approve, 
disapprove, or approve with conditions the contract for extended services.  If the contract is 
disapproved or approved with conditions, the applicant may request reconsideration, citing 
the reasons for reconsideration. 
 
(e) This section does not apply to contracts or agreements solely involving two or more 
public agencies where the public service to be provided is an alternative to, or substitute for, 
public services already being provided by an existing public service provider and where the 
level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of service contemplated by the 
existing service provider.  This section does not apply to contracts for the transfer of 
nonpotable or nontreated water.  This section does not apply to contracts or agreements 
solely involving the provision of surplus water to agricultural lands and facilities, including, 
but not limited to, incidental residential structures, for projects that serve conservation 
purposes or that directly support agricultural industries.  However, prior to extending surplus 
water service to any project that will support or induce development, the city or district shall 
first request and receive written approval from the commission in the affected county.  This 
section does not apply to an extended service that a city or district was providing on or before 
January 1, 2001.  This section does not apply to a local publicly owned electric utility, as 
defined by Section 9604 of the Public Utilities Code, providing electric services that do not 
involve the acquisition, construction, or installation of electric distribution facilities by the 
local publicly owned electric utility, outside of the utility's jurisdictional boundaries. 

Attachment Six



City of  American Canyon

City of American Cayon

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
February 2007
Prepared by KS

City of  American Canyon
Sphere of  Influence



Fagan Creek
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited sewer service area
Soscol Ridge (approximate location)
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited water service area

Legend

£¤29

£¤12

£¤221£¤29

£¤12

American Canyon Rd

§̈¦80

Green Island Rd

Lombard Rd

Watson Ln

Tower Rd

Airpark Rd

South K
elly R

d

Attachment Six



American Canyon County Water District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
February 2007

Prepared by KS/TLG



Legend

£¤29

£¤221
£¤29

American Canyon Rd

§̈¦80

Green Island Rd

Lombard Rd

Watson Ln

Tower Rd

Airpark Rd
South K

elly R
d

ACCWD
Jurisdictional Boundary
ACCWD 
Sphere of Influence

£¤12

ACCWD's jurisdictional boundary 
and sphere of influence depicted  
are GIS-based recreations of an 
original 40”x42” map available 
for viewing at the LAFCO office.

Attachment Six



City of  American Canyon

City of American Cayon
County Service Area No. 3

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
February 2007
Prepared by KS

City of  American Canyon
Sphere of  Influence



Fagan Creek
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited sewer service area
Soscol Ridge (approximate location)
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited water service area

Legend

£¤29

£¤12

£¤221£¤29

£¤12

County Service Area No. 3
County Service Area No. 3
Sphere of  Influence

American Canyon Rd

§̈¦80

Green Island Rd

Lombard Rd

Watson Ln

Tower Rd

Airpark Rd

South K
elly R

d

Attachment Six



City of  American Canyon

City of American Cayon
Napa Sanitation District

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
February 2007
Prepared by KS

City of  American Canyon
Sphere of  Influence



Fagan Creek
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited sewer service area
Soscol Ridge (approximate location)
Area to the south represents American Canyon's inherited water service area

Legend

£¤29

£¤12

£¤221£¤29

£¤12

Napa Sanitation District
Napa Sanitation District
Sphere of  Influence

American Canyon Rd

§̈¦80

Green Island Rd

Lombard Rd

Watson Ln

Tower Rd

Airpark Rd

South K
elly R

d

Attachment Six



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT F 

Attachment Six



 1700 Second Street, Suite 268
Napa, CA  94559

(707) 259-8645
FAX (707) 251-1053

http://napa.lafco.ca.gov

Jack Gingles, Chair Brad Wagenknecht, Vice-Chair Brian J. Kelly, Commissioner 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission 
LAFCO of Napa County Lo

ca
l A

ge
ncy Formation Comm

ission

Napa County

 
 

October 1, 2007 
Agenda Item No. 7a 

 
 
September 19, 2007 
 
TO:  Local Agency Formation Commission  
 
FROM: Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
  Jacqueline Gong, Commission Counsel 
 
SUBJECT: California Government Code §56133 (Action)  

The Commission will receive a report evaluating two policy options 
addressing its role as it relates to the City of American Canyon providing 
water and sewer services outside its jurisdictional boundary under 
California Government Code §56133.  The Commission will consider draft 
resolutions adopting one of the two policy options. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

California Government Code (G.C.) §56133 directs cities and special districts to receive 
written approval from Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) to provide new 
or extended services by contract or agreement outside their jurisdictional boundaries.  
G.C. §56133 was enacted by the Legislature in 1993 in response to cities and special 
districts circumventing LAFCO by contractually extending services outside their 
jurisdictions to property owners instead of annexing the affected lands.  LAFCOs are 
restricted to approving agency requests to extend services outside their spheres of 
influence only to address threats to public health and safety.  In 2003, the Legislature 
grandfathered the effective date of G.C. §56133 to January 1, 2001.   
 
The intent of G.C. §56133 is to strengthen the ability of LAFCOs to fulfill their mandate 
to plan the orderly formation and development of local governmental agencies in a 
manner that protects agricultural and open-space resources and discourages urban sprawl.  
G.C. §56133 also reflects the desire of the Legislature that LAFCOs participate in the 
decision-making process with respect to the extension of governmental services in 
unincorporated areas.  Administering G.C. §56133, however, remains challenging 
because the statute as currently written limits the discretion of LAFCOs in approving 
otherwise logical extension of services that are appropriate given local conditions. 
  
This report evaluates two separate policy options aimed at addressing the role of the 
Commission under G.C. §56133 as it relates to the City of American Canyon entering 
into contracts or agreements to provide water and sewer services outside its jurisdiction, 
hereinafter referred to as “outside services.”  These options were outlined and briefly 
reviewed as part of an earlier report presented at the March 5, 2007 meeting.  Staff has 
expanded its outline and review of both options and offers a recommendation for 
Commission consideration.    

 

Mayor, City of Calistoga 
 

Juliana Inman, Commissioner  
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 

Cindy Coffey, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 
 

 

County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 
 

Bill Dodd, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 4th District 

 

Mark Luce, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

 

Representative of the General Public 
 

Gregory Rodeno, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer 

 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 2 of 9 
 

                                                          

Background 
 
At the March 5, 2007 meeting, staff presented a report to the Commission regarding an 
inconsistency between the provisions of G.C. §56133 and the current practices 
underlying outside water and sewer services in unincorporated south Napa County.  The 
inconsistency, which was initially highlighted in two recent municipal service reviews, is 
generated by American Canyon providing what appears to constitute new and extended 
outside services without Commission approval.  The source of the inconsistency is drawn 
from American Canyon serving as successor agency to the American Canyon County 
Water District (ACCWD).  Specifically, as successor agency, American Canyon has 
inherited agreements defining water and sewer service areas for the City that extend 
beyond its jurisdiction and sphere.   
 
The March report noted the established practice of the Commission is not to require 
American Canyon to receive approval in providing new or extended outside water and 
sewer services based on an initial reading of G.C. §56133.  Markedly, at the time enacted, 
G.C. §56133 included a broad exemption involving contracts or agreements involving 
two or more public agencies under subsection (e).  Drawing on this original text, the 
Commission concluded that American Canyon could continue to provide new or 
extended outside water and sewer services based on the agreements it inherited with 
Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (NCFCWCD) and the Napa 
Sanitation District (NSD).1  These agreements establish “agency-defined” water and 
sewer service areas for American Canyon that extend north of its jurisdiction and sphere 
to Soscol Ridge and Fagan Creek, respectively, and include properties located in the 
Napa County Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan.2   
 
In 2001, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 was 
enacted and made substantial changes to LAFCO law.  This included amending G.C. 
§56133 to restrict the exemption under subsection (e) to instances where “the services to 
be provided are an alternative or substitute for services that are already being provided.”  
Substantively, the amendment precludes the Commission from continuing its established 
practice because several properties in American Canyon’s agency-defined service areas 
remain without water or sewer service.  

 
1  At its February 9, 1994 meeting, the Commission received a report from staff regarding the changes in LAFCO law resulting 

from the implementation of Assembly Bill 1335, including the enactment of G.C. §56133.   The staff report was presented 
for information and did not make any specific comments or recommendations regarding the application of G.C. §56133 in 
Napa County.  On February 23, 20007, staff contacted former LAFCO Executive Officer Charles Wilson to discuss the 
Commission’s initial review of G.C. §56133.  Mr. Wilson stated that the Commission did discuss and conclude that the 
agreement American Canyon inherited with the NCFCWCD authorized the City to continue to provide extraterritorial water 
service north to Soscol Ridge without LAFCO approval under G.C. §56133 based on the exemption involving agreements 
between two or more public agencies.   Although he did not recall any specific discussions regarding sewer provision, Mr. 
Wilson believes that the Commission did discuss and conclude that the agreement between American Canyon and NSD also 
authorized the City to continue to provide extraterritorial sewer service north to Fagan Creek without LAFCO approval.  

2  American Canyon’s agreement with NSD designating Fagan Creek as the boundary line between their respective sewer 
service areas was established in practice in the 1960s.  In 1983, ACCWD and NSD adopted similar resolutions requesting 
the Commission designate each agency’s sphere to reflect Fagan Creek as the dividing line between their sewer service 
areas.  In 1994, as part of a dissolution agreement involving the Napa-American Canyon Wastewater Management 
Authority, American Canyon and NSD further formalized and expanded the above-referenced agreement by specifying that 
Fagan Creek serve as  the dividing line between each agency’s sewer and recycled water service areas.   

 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 3 of 9 
 

                                                          

With the goal of initiating discussion and identifying preferences, the March report 
outlined five broad options for the Commission in addressing its role as it relates to 
American Canyon providing outside water and sewer services under G.C. §56133.  
Options outlined in March ranged from strict enforcement of G.C. §56133 to adopting a 
policy to exempt American Canyon from requiring Commission approval.  All five 
options were briefly analyzed in terms of advantages and disadvantages as well as 
possible policy outcomes.  At the conclusion of its discussion, the Commission directed 
staff to further develop and evaluate the two options proposing local policies, identified 
as Options “D” and “E.” 
 
Discussion 
 
Options D and E represent distinct policy alternatives that provide measurably different 
roles for the Commission in administering G.C. §56133.  Options D and E would both 
incorporate local conditions recognizing American Canyon as the primary water and 
sewer service provider in unincorporated south Napa County.3  However, Option D 
establishes a role for the Commission in authorizing American Canyon to continue to 
provide new or extended outside services.  Option D also provides controls against the 
extension of outside services in agricultural and open-space designated lands.  In contrast, 
Option E determines that American Canyon does not require Commission approval to 
continue to provide outside services within the service areas defined in its agreements 
with NCFCWCD and NSD because they are not considered new or extended under G.C. 
§56133.  Expanded summaries of both options follow.  
 

 Option D 
 

The Commission would establish a policy allowing American Canyon to continue to 
provide new or extended outside water and sewer services based upon LAFCO 
review and approval.  Approval would be granted either through a comprehensive 
(area-wide) or incremental (individual application) approach.  Specific components 
comprising Option D are outlined below.  

 
• The Commission would adopt a water service area for American Canyon.  

The water service area would be distinct from American Canyon’s sphere and 
generally reflect its agreement with NCFCWCD, but exclude lands designated 
for non-urban use under the current County General Plan.  

 
• The Commission would adopt a sewer service area for American Canyon.  

The sewer service area would be distinct from American Canyon’s sphere and 
generally reflect its agreement with NSD, but exclude lands designated for 
non-urban use under the current County General Plan. 

 
 

 
3  NSD provides sewer service in south unincorporated Napa County north of Fagan Creek.  NSD’s sewer services in south 

unincorporated Napa County are contained within its jurisdictional boundary.  

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 4 of 9 
 

• American Canyon would be restricted from providing new or extended outside 
water and sewer services beyond its service areas defined by LAFCO.  
Individual exemptions would be considered by the Commission in response to 
special circumstances.  

 
• The Commission would recognize and designate American Canyon as the 

appropriate public water and sewer service provider within its service areas 
defined by LAFCO.  The Commission would also recognize that American 
Canyon may establish terms and conditions relating to the provision of new or 
extended outside services within its service areas. 

 
• The Commission would determine that the provision of new or extended 

outside water and sewer services by American Canyon within its service areas 
defined by LAFCO abates potential threats to public health and safety.  

 
• If a comprehensive approach is preferred, as part of an area-wide approval, the 

Commission would authorize American Canyon to provide new or extended 
outside water and sewer services within its service areas defined by LAFCO.  
Approval would be based upon information analyzed and determinations 
adopted by the Commission as part of the Comprehensive Water Service Study 
(2004) and Comprehensive Study of Sanitation and Wastewater Treatment 
Providers (2006).  These determinations collectively state that American 
Canyon has established adequate service capacities and administrative controls 
to provide an adequate level of water and sewer within its service areas. 

 
• If an incremental approach is preferred, the Commission would authorize 

American Canyon to provide new or extended outside water and sewer services 
within its service areas defined by LAFCO on an application-by-application 
basis.  The applicant would pay the costs of processing the application as 
specified in the Commission’s Schedule of Fees and Deposits.  The Executive 
Officer would prepare a report on the application with a recommendation for 
Commission consideration at a public meeting.  LAFCO would use the 
following definitions for new and extended services: 

 
“New” services would be triggered with the extension of water or sewer to 
previously unserved land. 
 
“Extended” services would be triggered with the intensification of water or 
sewer uses to previously served land as a result of redesignation or 
rezoning by the affected land use authority.  

 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Option E 
 

The Commission would establish a policy determining that American Canyon does 
not require approval under G.C. §56133 to continue to provide outside water or sewer 
services within the service areas defined in its agreements with NCFCWCD and 
NSD.  This policy would be premised on the Commission determining that American 
Canyon’s agreements with NCFCWCD and NSD adequately provides for the 
provision of water and sewer within its agency-defined service areas, and is therefore 
not considered new or extended under G.C. §56133. 

 
*  Staff has expanded the scope of Option E from the original outline presented to the 

Commission in March.  Specifically, the March report outlined a policy determining 
that American Canyon does not require Commission approval to provide outside 
water services based on the City’s agreement with NCFCWD.  In preparing this 
report, staff has expanded the scope of Option E to further exempt American 
Canyon from Commission approval with respect to providing outside sewer 
services based on the City’s agreement with NSD defining Fagan Creek as the 
dividing line between their respective sewer service areas.  This addition reflects 
staff’s determination that both agreements are similar in terms of equally 
contemplating that American Canyon, as successor agency to ACCWD, will 
provide future water and sewer within its agency-defined service areas.  

 
Analysis 
 
As mentioned, Options D and E reflect separate policy alternatives for the Commission to 
clarify its role in addressing the inconsistencies between the provisions of G.C. §56133 
and the current practices of American Canyon in providing outside water and sewer 
services.   The key components as well as advantages and disadvantages underlying these 
options, including distinguishing between comprehensive or incremental approval under 
Option D, are summarized below.  
 

Option D (Comprehensive Approval) 
The Commission establishes water and sewer service areas for American Canyon that 
are distinct from its sphere and exclude lands designated for non-urban use under the 
current County General Plan.   The Commission authorizes American Canyon to 
provide new or extended outside water and sewer services within these service areas 
without further review by determining the City has adequate service capacities and 
administrative controls. 
 
Advantages 
 

• Reconciles the provisions of G.C. §56133 with local conditions and 
circumstances underlying outside water and sewer service arrangements 
inherited by American Canyon at the time of its incorporation in 1992.  

 
• Establishes water and sewer service areas for American Canyon that are 

generally consistent with its agreements with NCFCWCD and NSD.  

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 6 of 9 
 

                                                          

• Is compatible with the County’s expectation as the affected land use authority 
that American Canyon is the designated public water and sewer provider for 
unincorporated lands north to Soscol Ridge and Fagan Creek, respectively.  

 
• Provides effective controls for the Commission to fulfill its mandate to 

discourage the expansion of governmental services to agricultural and open-
space designated lands.  

 
• Is consistent with written determinations adopted as part of the Commission’s 

Comprehensive Water Service Study and Comprehensive Study of 
Sanitation/Wastewater Treatment Providers. 

 
• Is consistent with an underlying tenet of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local 

Government Reorganization Act of 2000 that the Commission consider local 
conditions and circumstances in planning the orderly formation and 
development of governmental agencies and services. 

 
Disadvantages 

 
• Eliminates opportunities for the Commission to individually examine 

capacities and controls for American Canyon relating to the timing of new or 
extended water and sewer services within its service areas defined by LAFCO.  

 
• Creates uncertainties with respect to potential conflicts with Article 11, 

Section 9 of the California Constitution by establishing restrictions on the 
ability of American Canyon to provide water service outside its jurisdiction.4   

 
Option D (Incremental Approval) 
The Commission establishes water and sewer service areas for American Canyon that 
are distinct from its sphere and exclude lands designated for non-urban use under the 
current County General Plan.   The Commission authorizes American Canyon to 
provide new or extended services within these service areas on an application-by-
application basis.  

 
Advantages 
 

• Along with the advantages listed under comprehensive approval, the 
incremental approach allows the Commission to individually examine 
American Canyon’s capacities and controls in providing new or extended 
outside water or sewer services to lands within its service areas defined by 
LAFCO.  This would provide greater controls for the Commission in 
determining whether the timing of new or extended services is appropriate. 

 
 

4  Article 11, Section 9 of the California Constitution states that a “municipal corporation” may establish and provide light, 
water, power, heat, and transportation services outside its boundaries. There is no case law addressing the potential conflict 
between this constitution provision and G.C. §56133. 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 7 of 9 
 

 Disadvantages 
 

• Along with the disadvantage listed under the comprehensive approval relating 
to potential conflict with the constitutional authority of the City to provide 
services, the incremental approach requires the Commission expend 
considerable resources to administer.  Incremental approval also requires the 
Commission establish evaluation standards in reviewing application requests 
under G.C. §56133.   

 
Option E 
The Commission determines that American Canyon does not require approval under 
G.C. §56133 in providing outside water or sewer within its service areas defined in its 
agreements with NCFCWCD and NSD.  The Commission determines that these 
agreements adequately provide for American Canyon to deliver outside water and 
sewer services within its agency-defined service areas and are not considered new or 
extended under G.C. §56133. 
 
Advantages 
 

• Effectively formalizes the established practice of the Commission not to 
require American Canyon to receive LAFCO approval to provide outside 
water and sewer services within its agency-defined service areas. 

 
• Eliminates the need to dedicate Commission resources to administer. 
 
• Is responsive to local conditions and circumstances underlying outside water 

and sewer service arrangements inherited by American Canyon at the time of 
its incorporation in 1992.  

 
Disadvantages 

 
• Diminishes the intent of G.C. §56133 for the Commission to participate in the 

decision-making process involving the extension of outside water and sewer 
services by American Canyon in unincorporated south Napa County.  

 
• Precludes the Commission from establishing controls to protect against the 

extension of outside water and sewer services by American Canyon in 
surrounding agricultural and open-space designated lands.  

 
• Establishes a policy precedent with respect to deferring to similar local service 

agreements in administering G.C. §56133 with unknown outcomes.  
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 8 of 9 
 
Conclusion 
 
Options D and E are measured policy alternatives for the Commission to address its role 
under G.C. §56133 as it relates to American Canyon.  Both alternatives are reasonable 
attempts to clarify the Commission’s responsibilities in a manner that is responsive to 
local conditions and circumstances.  Staff believes that Option D is the more effective of 
the two alternatives with respect to fulfilling the legislative intent of G.C. §56133.  
Notably, Option D reconciles the responsibilities of the Commission while recognizing 
existing service arrangements and provides controls against the extension of urban 
services into agricultural and open-space designated lands.  
 
Option D could be implemented by authorizing American Canyon to continue to provide 
new or extended outside water or sewer services within its service areas defined by 
LAFCO in a comprehensive or incremental approach.  Staff believes that a comprehensive 
approach to Option D is preferable because it achieves the Commission’s interests in 
meeting the legislative intent of G.C. §56133 without creating additional administrative 
processes in approving the logical extension of services within urban designated lands.  
 
Alternatives for Commission Action  
 
After consideration of this report, the Commission should consider approving one of the 
following alternatives: 
 

Alternative One: Approve Option D, comprehensive approach.  This would 
include taking the following action: 

 
1)  Adopt the attached draft resolution identified as “Attachment 

Five-A.”  
 
Alternative Two: Approve Option D, incremental approach. This would 

include taking the following action: 
 

1)  Adopt the attached draft resolution identified as “Attachment 
Five-B.”  

 
Alternative Three: Approve Option E.  This would include taking the following 

action: 
 

1)  Adopt the attached draft resolution identified as “Attachment 
Five-C.”  

 
Alternative Four: If the Commission requires more discussion or information, 

continue this matter to a future meeting.   
 
 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 1, 2007 
Page 9 of 9 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends Alternative One.  This alternative approves the comprehensive 
approach in implementing Option D.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Keene Simonds     Jacqueline Gong 
Executive Officer     Commission Counsel  
 
 
 Attachments: 
1. California Government Code §56133 
2. Maps 

    a) American Canyon (depicting inherited water and sewer service areas) 
    b) American Canyon County Water District (at the time of its merger into American Canyon) 
    c) American Canyon (metered outside water and sewer service connections) 
    d) County of Napa Airport Industrial Area Specific Plan Boundary  
    e) Proposed Outside Water and Sewer Service Areas for American Canyon under Option D 

3. Agreements 
    a) Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District: Water Supply (1966) 
    b) Napa-American Canyon Wastewater Management Authority: Dissolution (1994) 

4. Written Comments 
    a) Letter from Robert Westmeyer, County Counsel, County of Napa, dated February 26, 2007 
    b) Letter from William Ross, City Attorney, American Canyon, dated March 5, 2007 
    c) Letter from Iris Yang on behalf of American Canyon, dated June 4, 2007 
    d) Letter from Alan Lilly on behalf of the County of Napa, dated July 23, 2007 

5. Draft LAFCO Resolutions 
    a) Alternative One: Option D (comprehensive approval) 
    b) Alternative Two: Option D (incremental approval) 
    c) Alternative Three: Option E 
 

Attachment Six

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

ksimonds
Line

bfreeman
Line

bfreeman
Line

bfreeman
Line

bfreeman
Line

bfreeman
Line



California Government Code Section 56133   
 

(a) A city or district may provide new or extended services by contract or agreement outside 
its jurisdictional boundaries only if it first requests and receives written approval from the 
commission in the affected county. 
 
(b) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere of influence in anticipation of a later 
change of organization. 
 
(c) The commission may authorize a city or district to provide new or extended services 
outside its jurisdictional boundaries and outside its sphere of influence to respond to an 
existing or impending threat to the public health or safety of the residents of the affected 
territory if both of the following requirements are met: 
 

   (1) The entity applying for the contract approval has provided the commission with 
documentation of a threat to the health and safety of the public or the affected 
residents. 

 

(2) The commission has notified any alternate service provider, including any water 
corporation as defined in Section 241 of the Public Utilities Code, or sewer system 
corporation as defined in Section 230.6 of the Public Utilities Code, that has filed a 
map and a statement of its service capabilities with the commission. 
 

(d) The executive officer, within 30 days of receipt of a request for approval by a city or 
district of a contract to extend services outside its jurisdictional boundary, shall determine 
whether the request is complete and acceptable for filing or whether the request is 
incomplete.  If a request is determined not to be complete, the executive officer shall 
immediately transmit that determination to the requester, specifying those parts of the request 
that are incomplete and the manner in which they can be made complete.  When the request 
is deemed complete, the executive officer shall place the request on the agenda of the next 
commission meeting for which adequate notice can be given but not more than 90 days from 
the date that the request is deemed complete, unless the commission has delegated approval 
of those requests to the executive officer.  The commission or executive officer shall approve, 
disapprove, or approve with conditions the contract for extended services.  If the contract is 
disapproved or approved with conditions, the applicant may request reconsideration, citing 
the reasons for reconsideration. 
 
(e) This section does not apply to contracts or agreements solely involving two or more 
public agencies where the public service to be provided is an alternative to, or substitute for, 
public services already being provided by an existing public service provider and where the 
level of service to be provided is consistent with the level of service contemplated by the 
existing service provider.  This section does not apply to contracts for the transfer of 
nonpotable or nontreated water.  This section does not apply to contracts or agreements 
solely involving the provision of surplus water to agricultural lands and facilities, including, 
but not limited to, incidental residential structures, for projects that serve conservation 
purposes or that directly support agricultural industries.  However, prior to extending surplus 
water service to any project that will support or induce development, the city or district shall 
first request and receive written approval from the commission in the affected county.  This 
section does not apply to an extended service that a city or district was providing on or before 
January 1, 2001.  This section does not apply to a local publicly owned electric utility, as 
defined by Section 9604 of the Public Utilities Code, providing electric services that do not 
involve the acquisition, construction, or installation of electric distribution facilities by the 
local publicly owned electric utility, outside of the utility's jurisdictional boundaries. 

Attachment Six



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT G 

Attachment Six



1700 Second Street, Suite 268
Napa, CA  94559

(707) 259-8645
FAX (707) 251-1053

http://napa.lafco.ca.gov

Jack Gingles, Chair 
Mayor, City of Calistoga 

Brad Wagenknecht, Vice-Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

Brian J. Kelly, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

Local Agency Formation Commission 
LAFCO of Napa County Lo

ca
l A

ge
ncy Formation Comm

ission

Napa County October 15, 2007 
Agenda Item No. 4a 

October 10, 2007 

TO:  Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Keene Simonds, Executive Officer 
Jacqueline Gong. Commission Counsel  

SUBJECT: California Government Code §56133 (Action: Continued)  
The Commission will receive a supplemental analysis relating to a staff 
report presented at the October 1, 2007 meeting.  The supplemental 
analysis addresses an alternative option proposed by the County of Napa 
regarding the Commission’s role in administering California Government 
Code §56133 as it relates to the City of American Canyon.  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

At the October 1, 2007 meeting, the Commission received a staff report evaluating 
separate policy options to address LAFCO’s role under California Government Code 
(G.C.) §56133 with respect to the extraterritorial service practices of the City of American 
Canyon.  The policy options were evaluated in context to an existing discrepancy between 
the responsibilities of the Commission to regulate outside service provision and the water 
and sewer service areas assumed by American Canyon at the time of its incorporation. 
Markedly, as successor to the American Canyon County Water District, American Canyon 
has inherited agreements with local agencies that include agency-defined water and sewer 
service areas for the City extending beyond its jurisdiction and sphere of influence.  The 
key components underlying the policy options evaluated in the October report are 
summarized below. 

Option D (Comprehensive):  
 

 

The Commission would adopt extraterritorial water and sewer service areas for 
American Canyon to include only lands within its existing agency-defined service 
areas that are designated for urban use under the current County General Plan. The 
Commission would make a one-time determination authorizing American Canyon to 
provide new and extended services within its extraterritorial service areas.    

Option D (Incremental):  
 

 

The Commission would take similar actions to the comprehensive approach to Option 
D with the exception of authorizing American Canyon to provide new or extended 
services in its extraterritorial service areas on an application-by-application basis.  

Juliana Inman, Commissioner  
Councilmember, City of Napa 

Cindy Coffey, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 

Bill Dodd, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 4th District 

Mark Luce, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

Gregory Rodeno, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 15, 2007 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 

Option E:  
 

 

The Commission would determine that American Canyon does not require approval 
under G.C. §56133 to provide water and sewer services within its agency-defined 
service areas.   

 
The October report concluded that a comprehensive approach to Option D is the preferred 
policy alternative for the Commission.  In particular, this option satisfies the legislative 
intent of G.C. §56133 by establishing controls against the extension of urban services into 
agricultural designated lands in a manner that recognizes existing service arrangements.  
This option also avoids unnecessary administrative processes in approving the logical 
extension of urban services that are appropriate given local conditions and circumstances.  
Finally, this option provides predictability to American Canyon as the service provider 
and the County as land use authority in identifying the areas in which the Commission 
believes it is appropriate for the City to provide extraterritorial water and sewer services.  
 
Discussion 
 
At the October 1st meeting, the Commission received a request from the County to 
consider an alternative option to staff’s recommendation of a comprehensive approach to 
Option D.  The County’s “alternative option,” as originally submitted, generally 
incorporated the provisions in the comprehensive approach to Option D and referenced 
the extraterritorial service areas for American Canyon proposed by LAFCO staff.  
However, distinctively, the original alternative option included a broad determination that 
all future water and sewer connections within American Canyon’s extraterritorial service 
areas would not be considered new or extended and therefore not subject to Commission 
approval.  The Commission directed staff to return with an analysis of the alternative 
option as part of a special meeting scheduled for October 15, 2007.   
 
Analysis 
 
On October 9, 2007, the County submitted an expansive revision to its alternative option 
for consideration by the Commission.   The County’s revision includes three fundamental 
and related changes from the original alternative option presented at the October 1st 
meeting.   First, the alternative option now expands American Canyon’s extraterritorial 
water and sewer service areas to correspond with the agency-defined service areas it 
assumed at the time of its incorporation through contracts with the Napa County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation District and the Napa Sanitation District.  Second, the 
revised alternative option specifies that future service connections within the 
extraterritorial service areas that are part of the County’s Airport Industrial Area Specific 
Plan (AIASP) are not new or extended services and not subject to Commission approval.  
Third, the revised alternative option states that all future connections in the 
extraterritorial service areas lying outside the AIASP are considered new or extended 
services and subject to Commission approval.   
 
 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 15, 2007 
Page 3 of 6 
 
In submitting its revised alternative option the County has expressed concern regarding 
the long-term implications associated with staff’s recommendation for a comprehensive 
approach to Option D.  In its corresponding letter of October 9, 2007, the County 
comments that the provisions in the comprehensive approach to Option D establish 
precedents for the Commission to approve all future out-of-agency service connections.  
The County believes this precedent is disconcerting and may create “significant and 
unintended effects in the case of other cities in Napa County.”   The County asserts the 
provisions in its alternative option provide the same substantive results as the 
comprehensive approach to Option D relating to lands in the AIASP while providing 
flexibility in determining the application of G.C. §56133 as it relates to other agencies.  
 
Staff agrees with the County that its alternative option provides a similar functional result 
to the comprehensive approach to Option D with respect to lands in the AIASP.  
Specifically, both options establish no further role for the Commission relating to 
American Canyon serving new water and sewer connections within the portion of its 
extraterritorial service areas subject to the AIASP.  The two options, however, are 
predicated on markedly different determinations that influence the policy outcomes for the 
Commission.   These differences in policy outcomes arise in defining 1) new and extended 
services and 2) extraterritorial service areas.  Analysis of these differences follows.  
 

New and Extended Services  
 
 The comprehensive approach to Option D includes definitions for new and extended 

services.  The definition for “new” is broad and triggered with the actual extension of 
water or sewer services to previously unserved lands.  In contrast, the definition of 
“extended” is narrow and triggered with the intensification of water or sewer uses to 
previously served land as a result of redesignation or rezoning by the affected land use 
authority.  These definitions balance each other and are intended to provide clear 
guidance to American Canyon when Commission approval is required to provide 
services outside its extraterritorial service areas.  

 
The County’s alternative option does not provide specific definitions for new and 
extended services.  As mentioned, the County believes it is inappropriate to apply 
specific and area-wide definitions to American Canyon’s extraterritorial service areas. 
The alternative option, however, does specify that future water and sewer connections 
to lands within the AIASP will accommodate infill development and is therefore not 
considered new or extended services.  In this respect, the alternative option does 
establish an implicit definition of new and extended services relating to infill and may 
create uncertain precedents for the Commission with regard to administering G.C. 
§56133 with respect to other cities and special districts in Napa County.   

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 15, 2007 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Extraterritorial Service Areas 
 
The comprehensive approach to Option D defines American Canyon’s extraterritorial 
service areas to include only lands within its existing agency-defined service areas that 
are designated for urban use under the current County General Plan.  The decision to 
utilize land use designations in determining appropriate extraterritorial service areas is 
consistent with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 
2000 as well as the adopted polices of the Commission.  The use of land use 
designations also provides a uniform tool for the Commission in determining the 
extraterritorial service areas for other local agencies in Napa County if necessary.  
 
The County’s alternative option defines American Canyon’s extraterritorial service 
areas to correspond directly with its agency-defined services areas.  Staff recognizes 
that this approach is consistent with the established practice of the Commission to 
recognize the service areas assumed by the City as successor to the American Canyon 
County Water District.   The alternative option would formalize this practice. 

 
The designation of American Canyon’s extraterritorial service areas is a tangible signal 
to the City where the Commission believes it is appropriate to eventually provide 
services.  The alternative option’s extraterritorial service areas include a number of 
lands designated for non-urban use under the current County General Plan.   The 
extraterritorial service areas defined in the comprehensive approach to Option D are 
limited to lands designated for urban use under the County General Plan and readily 
support the Commission’s objective to discourage urban sprawl.  

 
Conclusion 
 
The County’s revised alternative option is premised on reasonable assumptions and 
objectives.  Accordingly, the alternative option is a reasonable alternative for the 
Commission to consider with respect to addressing its role in administering G.C. §56133 in 
relationship to American Canyon.  
 
Staff continues to believe that a comprehensive approach to Option D is the more effective 
of the alternatives evaluated in fulfilling the legislative intent of G.C. §56133.    This law 
charges the Commission with the duty to review and approve new and extended services 
that arise outside the jurisdictional boundary of a service provider.  It is the role of the 
Commission to define new and extended services, determine the appropriate areas of 
governmental services, identify the appropriate service provider, and protect agricultural 
and open-space resources.   The comprehensive approach to Option D addresses these 
prescribed roles of the Commission in a manner that 1) establishes effective controls 
against urban sprawl, 2) avoids unnecessary administrative process in approving the logical 
extension of services appropriate for local conditions, and 3) provides predictability for 
American Canyon in identifying its future service areas and responsibilities.   

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 15, 2007 
Page 5 of 6 
 
Alternatives for Commission Action  
 
After consideration of this supplemental analysis, the Commission should consider 
approving one of the following alternatives: 
 

Alternative One: Approve Option D, comprehensive approach.  This would 
include taking the following action: 

 
1)  Adopt the revised attached draft resolution identified as 

“Alternative One (Option D: Comprehensive)”  
 
Alternative Two: Approve Option D, incremental approach. This would 

include taking the following action: 
 

1)  Adopt the revised attached draft resolution identified as 
“Alternative Two (Option D: Incremental)” 

 
Alternative Three: Approve Option E.  This would include taking the following 

action: 
 

1) Adopt the revised attached draft resolution identified as 
“Alternative Three (Option E)” 

 
Alternative Four: Approve the Alternative Option.  This would include taking 

the following action: 
  

1)  Adopt the revised attached draft resolution identified as 
“Alternative Four (Alternative Option)” 

 
* Staff has made a limited number of changes to the draft resolutions that were 

presented at the October 1st meeting for Alternatives One, Two, and Three.  These 
changes are highlighted in red in the “track changes” version attached to each 
clean resolution.  The majority of changes apply only to Alternative One.  This 
includes 1) defining extraterritorial, 2) recognizing the expectation of the County 
that adequate water and sewer services shall be provided by American Canyon as 
successor to ACCWD within the City’s extraterritorial service areas, and 3) 
clarifying that Commission approval is unconditional.  Staff has also created two 
separate exhibits showing the proposed extraterritorial water and sewer service 
areas.  (A modification to the northwest corner of the water service area has also 
been made to correctly correspond with the boundary in the NCFCWCD contract.) 

 

Attachment Six



California Government Code §56133 
October 15, 2007 
Page 6 of 6 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends Alternative One.  This alternative approves the comprehensive 
approach in implementing Option D.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Keene Simonds     Jacqueline Gong 
Executive Officer     Commission Counsel  
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1) Letter from the County of Napa, dated October 9, 2007 
2) Draft Resolution for Alternative One 
3) Draft Resolution for Alternative Two 
4) Draft Resolution for Alternative Three 
5) Draft Resolution for Alternative Four 
6) LAFCO Staff Report for October 1, 2007 Meeting 

 
 

 

Attachment Six

ksimonds
Line



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



RESOLUTION NO. ______  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

 
POLICY DETERMINATION  

 

ADOPTION OF EXTRATERRITORIAL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AREAS FOR THE 
CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON AND AREAWIDE AUTHORIZATION TO PROVIDE 

SERVICES  
 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as 
“the Commission”, is directed under Government Code Section 56133 to regulate the provision of new 
and extended services by cities and special districts outside their jurisdictional boundaries; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of American Canyon, hereinafter referred as “American Canyon,” serves as 
successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District and assumed at the time of its 
incorporation water and sewer operations, including infrastructure and service arrangements, that extend 
beyond its jurisdictional boundary; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Commission has prepared studies evaluating the level and range of water and 

sewer services provided by American Canyon as part of the Comprehensive Water Service Study (2004) 
and the Comprehensive Study of Sanitation and Wastewater Treatment Providers (2006); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission held public meetings on March 5, 2007, October 1, 2007, and 
October 15, 2007 to discuss the matter of Government Code Section 56133 as it relates to American 
Canyon; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to reconcile the provisions of Government Code Section 
56133 with the water and sewer service operations assumed by American Canyon. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 
 

1. The Commission adopts extraterritorial water and sewer service areas for American Canyon 
that are distinct from its sphere of influence and shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” hereinafter 
referred to as “extraterritorial service areas.”  For the purpose of this policy, the Commission 
defines extraterritorial as lands served by American Canyon outside its jurisdictional 
boundary. 

 
2. The Commission recognizes and designates American Canyon as the appropriate public water 

and sewer service provider within its extraterritorial service areas. 
 

3. The Commission recognizes the expectation of the County of Napa that adequate public water 
and sewer services shall be provided by the City of American Canyon as successor agency to 
the American Canyon County Water District to lands in the extraterritorial service areas.  

 

Attachment Six



4. The Commission determines that American Canyon has sufficient service capacities and 
administrative controls to provide an adequate level of new or extended water and sewer 
services within its extraterritorial service areas.  For the purpose of this policy, the 
Commission makes the following definitions: 

 
a) New services are triggered with the actual extension of water or sewer to previously 

unserved land. 
 

b) Extended services are triggered with the intensification of water or sewer uses to 
previously served land as a result of redesignation or rezoning by the affected land use 
authority.  

 
5. The Commission recognizes that American Canyon may exercise its existing authority as a 

service provider to establish terms and conditions relating to the provision of new or extended 
water and sewer services within its extraterritorial service areas.  

 
6. The Commission determines that the provision by American Canyon of new or extended water 

and sewer services within its extraterritorial service areas abates potential threats to public 
health and safety.  The Commission finds that there are no other viable alternative service 
providers.  

 
7. The Commission authorizes American Canyon to provide new or extended water and sewer 

services within its extraterritorial service areas.   Authorization is granted unconditionally and 
will not be subject to further Commission review.  

  
8.  American Canyon may not provide new or extended water and sewer services beyond its 

extraterritorial service areas without prior written authorization by the Commission. 
  
9  As lead agency, the Commission finds the adoption of this policy determination is exempt from 

the California Environmental Quality Act under Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations §15320 (Class 20).   This policy formalizes and reconstitutes American Canyon’s 
organizational water and sewer service areas and practices in a manner with de minimis 
impacts to the service areas defined by the Commission.  

 
The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a meeting held on the 15th 
day of October, 2007, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners ___________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  ___________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
  
 
 
 
                                     

Attachment Six



ATTEST: Keene Simonds 
Executive Officer  

 
 
Recorded by: _______________________ 
  Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Water Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 7, 2007
Prepared by KS

City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence


Legend

£¤29

£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Water Service Area (Proposed)

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d NorthK

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek

Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial water service area generally includes all urban designated 
lands (County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Soscol Ridge.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT A

Hess
Vineyards

Napa Sanitation District

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 4, 2007
Prepared by KS

City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence


Legend

£¤29

£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area (Proposed)

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d North K

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek

Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial sewer service area includes all urban designated lands 
(County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Fagan Creek.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT B

Hess
Vineyards

Attachment Six



RESOLUTION NO. ______  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

 
POLICY DETERMINATION  

 

ADOPTION OF EXTRATERRITORIAL WATER AND SEWER SERVICE AREAS FOR  
THE CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON  

 
WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as 

“the Commission”, is directed under Government Code Section 56133 to regulate the provision of new 
and extended services by cities and special districts outside their jurisdictional boundaries; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of American Canyon, hereinafter referred as “American Canyon,” serves as 

successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District and assumed at the time of its 
incorporation water and sewer operations, including infrastructure and service arrangements, that extend 
beyond its jurisdictional boundary; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Commission has prepared studies evaluating the level and range of water and 

sewer services provided by American Canyon as part of the Comprehensive Water Service Study (2004) 
and the Comprehensive Study of Sanitation and Wastewater Treatment Providers (2006); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission held public meetings on March 5, 2007, October 1, 2007, and 
October 15, 2007 to discuss the matter of Government Code Section 56133 as it relates to American 
Canyon; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to reconcile the provisions of Government Code Section 
56133 with the water and sewer service operations assumed by American Canyon. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 
 

1. The Commission adopts extraterritorial water and sewer service areas for American Canyon 
that are distinct from its sphere of influence and shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” hereinafter 
referred to as “extraterritorial service areas.”  For the purpose of this policy, the Commission 
defines extraterritorial as lands served by American Canyon outside its jurisdictional 
boundary. 

 
2. The Commission recognizes and designates American Canyon as the appropriate public water 

and sewer service provider within its extraterritorial service areas. 
 

3. The Commission recognizes the expectation of the County of Napa that adequate public water 
and sewer services shall be provided by the City of American Canyon as successor agency to 
the American Canyon County Water District to lands in the extraterritorial service areas.  

 
 

Attachment Six



4. American Canyon may submit an application to the Commission requesting approval to 
provide new or extended water and sewer services within its extraterritorial service areas.  The 
application shall conform to standards as established by the Commission. For the purpose of 
this policy, the Commission makes the following definitions: 

 
a) New services are triggered with the actual extension of water or sewer to previously 

unserved land. 
b) Extended services are triggered with the intensification of water or sewer uses to 

previously served land as a result of redesignation or rezoning by the affected land use 
authority.  

 
5. The Commission recognizes that American Canyon may exercise its existing authority as a 

service provider to establish terms and conditions relating to the provision of new or extended 
water and sewer services within its extraterritorial service areas.  

 
6. The Commission determines that the provision by American Canyon of new or extended water 

and sewer services within its extraterritorial service areas abates potential threats to public 
health and safety.  The Commission finds that there are no other viable alternative service 
providers.  

 
7. American Canyon may not provide new or extended water and sewer services beyond its 

extraterritorial service areas without prior written authorization by the Commission.   
 

8. As lead agency, the Commission finds the adoption of this policy determination is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act under Title 14 of the California Code of 
Regulations §15320 (Class 20).   This policy formalizes and reconstitutes American Canyon’s 
organizational water and sewer service areas and practices in a manner with de minimis  
impacts to the service areas defined by the Commission.  

 
The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a meeting held on the 15th 
day of October, 2007, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners ___________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  ___________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
                                      
 
ATTEST: Keene Simonds 

Executive Officer  
 
Recorded by: _______________________ 
  Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Water Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 7, 2007
Prepared by KS

City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence


Legend

£¤29

£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Water Service Area (Proposed)

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d NorthK

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek

Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial water service area generally includes all urban designated 
lands (County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Soscol Ridge.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT A

Hess
Vineyards

Napa Sanitation District

Attachment Six



City of American Canyon

City of American Canyon
Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area

 

LAFCO of  Napa County
1700 Second Street, Suite 268

Napa, CA 94559
(707) 259-8645

Not to Scale
October 4, 2007
Prepared by KS

City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence


Legend

£¤29

£¤12

Green Island Road 

American Canyon Road

Flosden Rd

Tower Road

Airpark Road

Sonoma

Solano

Yolo

Lake

£¤12

City of American Canyon's Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area (Proposed)

D
ev

lin
 R

oa
d North K

elly R
oad

§̈¦80

Fagan Creek

Soscol Ridge



(approximation)

American Canyon's extraterritorial sewer service area includes all urban designated lands 
(County of Napa) located east of the Napa River and south of Fagan Creek.                                                             

Solano 
County

Napa County 
Airport

County land use designations 
are not parcel-specific             

Napa River

EXHIBIT B

Hess
Vineyards

Attachment Six



RESOLUTION NO. ______  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY 

 
POLICY DETERMINATION  

 

DETERMING THE CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON IS NOT SUBJECT TO COMMISSION 
APPROVAL UNDER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 56133 INVOLVING CERTAIN 

SERVICE AREAS OUTSIDE THE CITY 
 

WHEREAS, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County, hereinafter referred to as 
“the Commission”, is directed under Government Code Section 56133 to regulate the provision of new 
and extended services by cities and special districts outside their jurisdictional boundaries; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of American Canyon, hereinafter referred as “American Canyon,” serves as 

successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District and assumed at the time of its 
incorporation water and sewer operations, including infrastructure and service arrangements, that extend 
beyond its jurisdictional boundary; and  

 
WHEREAS, as successor agency to the American Canyon County Water District, American 

Canyon has inherited agreements with the Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
and the Napa Sanitation District that respectively establish water and sewer service areas for the City that 
extend beyond its jurisdictional boundary; and  
 

WHEREAS, the agreements American Canyon has inherited with the Napa County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District and the Napa Sanitation District were established prior to the effective 
date of January 1, 2001 of Government Code Section 56133; and  

  
WHEREAS, the Commission held public meetings on March 5, 2007, October 1, 2007, and 

October 15, 2007 to discuss the matter of Government Code Section 56133 as it relates to American 
Canyon; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to clarify its responsibilities under Government Code 
Section 56133 as it relates to American Canyon.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, 
AND ORDER as follows: 
 

1. The Commission determines that American Canyon does not require approval under 
Government Code Section 56133 to provide water and sewer services within the service areas 
defined in its agreements with Napa County Flood Control and Water Conservation District 
and the Napa Sanitation District.   The Commission determines that the referenced agreements 
adequately provide for the provision of water and sewer services within American Canyon 
agency-defined service areas and these services are not deemed new or extended and are not 
subject to Government Code Section 56133. 

 

Attachment Six



2. The Commission finds that the policy is not a project subject to the California Environmental 
Quality Act pursuant to Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations §15378. 

 
The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly adopted by the Commission at a meeting held on the 15th 
day of October, 2007, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:  Commissioners ___________________________ 
 
NOES:  Commissioners  ___________________________ 
                               
ABSENT: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners  ___________________________ 
                                      
 
ATTEST: Keene Simonds 

Executive Officer  
 
 
Recorded by: _______________________ 
  Kathy Mabry 
  Commission Secretary 

Attachment Six



Attachment Six



Attachment Six



0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles

´

Extraterritoral Service Areas
& Airport Industrial Area

Legend
Extraterritorial Sewer Service Area

Extraterritorial Water Service Area

Airport Industrial Area

American Canyon Sphere of Influence

Parcels

American Canyon

Napa

Napa County October 8, 2007

Exhibit - A

Fagan     Creek

Ver. 02

Attachment Six



 

 

Kenneth Leary, Chair 
Councilmember, City of American Canyon 
 

Margie Mohler, Commissioner 
Councilmember, Town of Yountville 
 

Scott Sedgley, Alternate Commissioner 
Councilmember, City of Napa 
 
 
 

Diane Dillon, Vice Chair 
County of Napa Supervisor, 3rd District 

 

Brad Wagenknecht, Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 1st District 

 

Ryan Gregory, Alternate Commissioner 
County of Napa Supervisor, 2nd District 

Gregory Rodeno, Commissioner 
Representative of the General Public 

 

Eve Kahn, Alternate Commissioner  
Representative of the General Public 

 

Brendon Freeman 
Executive Officer 

 

Local Agency Formation Commission of Napa County  
Subdivision of the State of California  
 
 
We Manage Local Government Boundaries, Evaluate Municipal Services, and Protect Agriculture  

 

 
1030 Seminary Street, Suite B 

Napa, California  94559 
Phone: (707) 259-8645 
www.napa.lafco.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8a (Action) 
 
 
 
TO:    Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
PREPARED BY: Brendon Freeman, Executive Officer 
 
MEETING DATE: October 5, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Streamlined Island Annexation Proceedings and Maps 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended the Commission discuss the information presented by staff related to 
unincorporated islands and, if appropriate, provide direction to staff to return with respect 
to any desired island annexation efforts. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Commission’s adopted Strategic Plan 2018-2022 contemplates the Commission 
seeking to partner with the City of Napa and Napa County to develop an island annexation 
program. 
 
In 2017, the Commission received several reports summarizing the background of local 
island annexation outreach efforts, service inefficiencies that islands perpetuate, financial 
and service considerations, and resources needed to pursue an island annexation program.  
 
On February 3, 2020, the Commission adopted its Policy on Unincorporated Islands (“the 
Policy”), included as Attachment One. The Policy includes a definition of “island” that 
clarifies the criteria for areas that are eligible for the streamlined island annexation 
proceedings codified under California Government Code (G.C.) Section 56375.3. The 
Commission also requested staff return with maps of all unincorporated areas located 
within each city or town’s sphere of influence that show the County’s General Plan land 
use designations. 
 
On May 4, 2020, the Commission requested staff return with information regarding the 
streamlined island annexation process codified under G.C. Section 56375.3.  
 
In August 2020, staff added a page to the Commission’s website with substantial 
information related to islands in Napa County. The website page is available online at: 
https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/r_island_annexation.aspx.  
 
 

https://www.napa.lafco.ca.gov/r_island_annexation.aspx


Streamlined Island Annexation Proceedings and Maps  
October 5, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
SUMMARY  
 
This report provides the information on islands that was requested by the Commission. The 
Commission is invited to discuss the information and consider whether any future changes 
to the Policy would be appropriate for purposes of revising the locally adopted definition 
of an “island”. If changes are desired, it is recommended the Commission provide direction 
to staff to return with a proposed amendment to the Policy at a future meeting. 
 
A summary of the streamlined island annexation process and information on existing 
islands in Napa County follows. 
 
Streamlined Island Annexation Process 
 
On January 1, 2001, Assembly Bill 2838 (Hertzberg) was enacted and significantly 
expanded the objectives, powers, and procedures underlying LAFCOs and their ability to 
coordinate logical growth and development while preserving agricultural and open space 
resources. This included establishing a streamlined process for cities and towns to annex 
unincorporated pockets that are either entirely or substantially surrounded by their 
jurisdictional boundaries, which are commonly referred to as “islands”. This streamlined 
process is codified under G.C. Section 56375.3 and allows cities and towns to annex islands 
under certain conditions while avoiding protest proceedings. The streamlined process also 
curtails LAFCOs’ discretion by directing LAFCO to approve the annexation. 
 
The streamlined island annexation process must be initiated by a city or town by resolution 
of application and must involve one or more entire islands. Similar to the standard 
annexation process, a tax sharing agreement with the County and prezoning of the island 
by the city or town are required.1  
 
The Policy definition of “island” requires all of the following criteria to be met for an 
unincorporated area to be eligible for the streamlined island annexation process: 

• Located entirely within a city or town’s sphere of influence (SOI) 
• Does not exceed 150 acres in size 
• Does not contain prime agricultural as defined under G.C. Section 56064 
• Does not contain lands subject to Measure P or designated by the County for an 

agricultural land use 
• Designated for urban development by the annexing city or town 
• Has an outer boundary that is 50% or more contiguous to the annexing city or town 
• The outer boundary is the city or town’s boundary, the city or town’s SOI, and/or 

property owned by the State of California 
• The territory is developed or developing 
• The territory receives municipal service benefits from the city or town, or would 

benefit from the city or town following annexation 
                                                        
1  In 1980, the City of Napa and Napa County entered into a master property tax sharing agreement that 

applies to all territory within the City’s SOI, including the islands. However, the City and the County retain 
the option to negotiate a separate tax sharing agreement for any proposed annexations. 



Streamlined Island Annexation Proceedings and Maps  
October 5, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
It is important to note the Commission’s adopted fee schedule specifies the fees typically 
collected by LAFCO to process annexation proposals will be waived if annexation is 
initiated by a city or town consistent with the streamlined island annexation process. 
 
Summary of Islands and Similar Unincorporated Areas 
 
There are 13 unincorporated areas in Napa County that meet the definition of an “island” 
under the Policy and are eligible for the streamlined annexation process. All 13 islands are 
located within the City of Napa’s SOI. In addition, there are 16 unincorporated areas within 
a local city or town’s SOI, but do not meet the local definition of an “island” and therefore 
they are ineligible for the streamlined annexation process.  
 
An inventory chart of all islands and similar unincorporated areas within a city or town’s 
SOI is included as Attachment Two. The inventory chart addresses all of the local policy 
criteria to inform whether or not each area meets the definition of “island” and is therefore 
eligible for the streamlined island annexation process. 
 
Notably, the non-island named “Foster/Grandview” is not considered an island solely due 
to the presence of a small amount of land that appears to be designated for an agricultural 
land use in the County General Plan and thus also subject to Measure P. However, every 
parcel within this area is already developed with a single-family residence. Further, the 
GIS mapping layers for the County General Plan land use designations appear to be 
approximations with susceptibility to errors. The “Foster/Grandview” area may in fact 
qualify as an island if errors are found in the GIS mapping layers. Further study is required 
to determine the precise County General Plan agricultural land use boundaries prior to 
initiation of annexation proceedings for this area. 
 
In addition, the non-island areas named “Saratoga/Capitola” and “Shurtleff/Cayetano” are 
not considered islands solely due to the presence of a single vacant parcel smaller than 0.5 
acres that meets the state’s technical definition of prime agricultural land under G.C. 
Section 56064. Notably, under state law the mere presence of any prime agricultural land 
within an area automatically disqualifies the area from the streamlined island annexation 
process. However, it is impractical to expect these small parcels – which are planned for 
residential land use by the City and also surrounded by urban land uses – to have significant 
value for agricultural purposes. This highlights an unintended consequence relating to the 
Legislature’s goal to expedite the annexation of islands while also preserving agricultural 
lands. Staff recommends the Commission consider the merits of pursuing a legislative 
amendment to the definition of prime agricultural land under G.C. Section 56064 to remedy 
this unintended consequence.  
 
Maps of Islands and Similar Unincorporated Areas 
 
As requested by the Commission, staff prepared maps of all unincorporated areas located 
within each city or town’s SOI showing the County’s General Plan land use designations, 
included as Attachment Three. For purposes of providing additional reference materials, 
staff prepared maps of each of the five cities and town showing the County’s General Plan 
land use designations for surrounding areas outside SOIs, included as Attachment Four. 



Streamlined Island Annexation Proceedings and Maps  
October 5, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
Next Steps 
 
Staff has been in communication with City of Napa staff regarding the process for initiating 
annexation for the islands. The City is currently studying existing infrastructure conditions 
within the islands, including an identification of estimated costs of improvements that 
would bring existing infrastructure in compliance with City standards. Coordination with 
Napa County will also be required. 
 
In addition, the Commission’s Outreach Committee (Chair Leary and Alternate 
Commissioner Kahn) will focus on information delivery strategies to ensure island 
landowners and residents are aware of the possible boundary change affecting them and 
have access to clear information. As mentioned on page one of this report, staff recently 
added a new page to the Commission’s website that is dedicated to providing information 
related to island annexation.  
 
Staff recommends the Commission discuss the information contained in this report and 
consider if any additional direction is appropriate. The Commission’s considerations 
should include, but are not limited to, the following options: 
 

• Direct staff to pursue a legislative amendment to the definition of prime agricultural 
land under G.C. Section 56064; 
 

• Direct staff to send formal correspondence to the City with a recommendation to 
initiate island annexation proceedings; 
 

• Direct staff to return with any additional information as desired (e.g., precise 
County General Plan agricultural land use boundaries); 
 

• Direct staff to schedule a future public workshop to provide information related to 
island annexation and answer questions from the public; 
 

• Direct the Policy Committee (Commissioners Mohler and Rodeno) to return with 
an amended local policy to remedy any unintended or undesired consequences; and 
 

• Direct the Outreach Committee (Chair Leary and Alternate Commissioner Kahn) 
to take any immediate public education and outreach actions as desired. 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1) Policy on Unincorporated Islands 
2) Inventory Chart of Unincorporated Areas Within City/Town Spheres 
3) Maps of Each Unincorporated Area Within City/Town Spheres Showing County General Plan Land 

Use Designations 
4) Maps of Each City/Town Showing County General Plan Land Use Designations 



LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA 

Policy on Unincorporated Islands 
(Adopted: February 3, 2020) 

I. Background

Unincorporated islands (hereinafter “islands”) are areas of unincorporated territory that are 
completely or substantially surrounded by an incorporated city or town. The Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization (CKH) Act of 2000 includes provisions for 
streamlining the annexation of islands to cities and towns (California Government Code (G.C.) 
§56375.3). CKH prohibits creation of new islands unless the Commission determines the
prohibition would be detrimental to the orderly development of the community and that the area
is located such that it could not reasonably be annexed to another city or town, or incorporated as
a new city or town (G.C. §56744). As a condition of annexation to a city or town that includes
territory located within an island, the Commission may require that the annexation include the
entire island (G.C. §56375(a)(5)).

II. Purpose

It is the intent of the Commission to establish a policy that clearly defines the characteristics of 
islands in Napa County to allow for their streamlined annexation to cities and towns. This is 
consistent with the intent of the California Legislature when it enacted special legislation, 
originally adopted in 1977 and subsequently expanded, that made it possible for certain islands to 
be annexed without a protest hearing or election. In approving this legislation, the Legislature 
recognized the following: 

A) Islands continue to represent a serious and unnecessary statewide governmental
inefficiency and that this inefficiency would be resolved if these islands were annexed into
the appropriate surrounding city or town.

B) Property owners’ ability to vote on boundary changes is a statutory privilege and not a
constitutional right.

C) Islands are inherently inefficient and that these inefficiencies affect not just residents within
islands, but also those residing throughout the city or town and the county.

III. Annexation Procedures

In order to utilize the streamlined annexation provisions codified under G.C. §56375.3, a city or 
town is required to initiate the process by adopting a resolution of application and submit the 
adopted resolution to the Commission. The Commission shall approve the annexation at a noticed 
public hearing and waive protest proceedings. The Commission may not disapprove the 
annexation. A property tax sharing agreement between the County and the affected city or town is 
required before the Commission may take final action on annexation consistent with Revenue and 
Taxation Code §99. The Commission encourages any city or town to enter into tax sharing 
agreements for affected islands prior to adoption of a resolution of application.  

Attachment One

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56375.3.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56375.3.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56744.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56375.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56375.3.&lawCode=GOV
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=99.&lawCode=RTC
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=99.&lawCode=RTC


Policy on Unincorporated Islands 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

IV. Local Policy Definition of “Island”  
 
The Commission defines an “island” in Napa County to include unincorporated territory that meets 
all of the following criteria: 
 

A) Located entirely within a city or town’s sphere of influence; 
 

B) Does not exceed 150 acres in size; 
 

C) Does not contain prime agricultural land as defined in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act 
(G.C. §56064); 
 

D) Does not contain lands subject to Measure P or has a General Plan designation of 
Agricultural Resource or Agriculture, Watershed and Open Space as reflected in the 
County of Napa General Plan Land Use Map; 
 

E) Designated for urban development in the general plan of the annexing city or town; 
 

F) Surrounded or substantially surrounded by the annexing city or town. Substantially 
surrounded territory is unincorporated territory with an outer boundary that is 50% or more 
contiguous to the annexing city or town’s jurisdictional boundary; 
 

G) The outer boundary is the annexing city or town’s jurisdictional boundary, the annexing 
city or town’s sphere of influence, and/or property owned by the State of California; 
 

H) The territory is developed or developing. This determination is based on the availability of 
public utilities, the presence of public improvements, or the presence of physical 
improvements on the parcels within the area; and 
 

I) The territory is currently receiving municipal service benefits from the annexing city or 
town, or would benefit from the city or town following annexation. 

 
 

 

Attachment One

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56064.&lawCode=GOV


Island Surrounding Surrounded Total Total Developed Estimated Public Water Public Sewer Urban City/Town General Prime Designated Agriculture Subject to
Vicinity City/Town By City/Town (%) Acres Parcels Parcels Population Service (%) Service (%) Plan Designation (%) Agriculture County General Plan (%) Measure P

West Pueblo / Linda Vista Napa 100 87.4 543 538 1399 98 100 100 No 0 No
West Pueblo / West Park Napa 100 10.1 19 18 47 68 100 100 No 0 No
Browns Valley / Kingston Napa 100 14.8 11 10 26 55 22 100 No 0 No
West F / Solano Napa 100 6.7 13 13 34 100 100 100 No 0 No
Terrace / Wyatt Napa 100 1.6 6 6 16 50 100 100 No 0 No
Terrace / Mallard Napa 100 2.2 3 3 8 0 100 100 No 0 No
Wilkins / Shetler Napa 100 0.6 2 2 5 50 100 100 No 0 No
Silverado / Saratoga Napa 100 1.9 1 1 3 0 100 100 No 0 No
Imola / Parrish Napa 93 32.0 213 208 541 97 100 100 No 0 No
Silverado / Stonecrest Napa 82 23.6 10 10 26 80 49 100 No 0 No
Imola / Tejas Napa 71 5.3 16 16 42 81 100 100 No 0 No
Shurtleff / Hillside Napa 70 2.5 3 2 5 0 100 100 No 0 No
Devita / Hilltop * Napa 50 0.2 1 1 3 100 100 100 No 0 No
Saratoga / Capitola Napa 100 3.6 4 3 8 0 100 100 Yes 0 No
Shurtleff / Cayetano Napa 100 3.5 4 3 8 75 100 100 Yes 0 No
Foster / Grandview Napa 81 7.6 6 6 16 83 0 100 No 10 Yes
Redwood / Lynn Napa 79 7.1 16 14 36 88 0 100 Yes 15 Yes
Basalt / Kaiser Napa 94 70.4 3 0 0 0 33 0 Yes 10 Yes
Redwood / Montana Napa 76 8.1 4 4 10 100 17 100 No 90 Yes
Penny / Madrid Napa 66 2.9 5 5 13 0 100 100 No 100 Yes
Redwood / Forest Napa 59 22.7 23 21 55 78 100 100 Yes 20 Yes
Hilltop / Griggs Napa 56 6.0 4 3 8 75 100 100 No 80 Yes
Big Ranch / Rosewood Napa 55 66.3 12 9 23 0 100 100 Yes 0 No
Foster / Golden Gate Napa 52 146.8 9 6 16 0 100 100 Yes 15 Yes
Penny / Imola Napa 50 3.3 2 2 5 0 100 100 No 100 Yes
Napa State Hospital / County Jail Napa 35 348.4 5 4 1100 100 100 0 No 5 No
Watson / Paoli American Canyon 77 77.7 16 11 29 81 13 100 Yes 35 Yes
Wastewater Pond Calistoga 50 5.3 1 1 0 0 0 0 Yes 100 Yes
Domaine Chandon Yountville 50 8.8 1 1 0 0 100 100 No 100 No

N/A 977.2 956 921 3479 18 Areas > 0% 26 Areas > 0% 27 Areas > 0% 9 Yes / 20 No 13 Areas > 0% 11 Yes / 18 No

13 areas meet the local policy definition of "island" and are eligible for streamlined annexation
16 areas do not meet the definition of "island" pursuant to local policy
* Requires confirmation of % of perimeter surrounded by city/town

Unincorporated Areas Within a City or Town's Sphere of Influence

Totals

Attachment Two



C
arol D

r

W Pueblo Ave

Redwood Rd

Kathleen Dr

Linda V
ista Ave

Janette Dr

Delpha Dr

Morlan Dr

Sandra Dr

Solano Ave

Ethel Porter Dr

Thom
as D

r

Barbara R
d

Verna Dr

Sherry Dr

W Park Ave

R
ohlffs W

ay

Pamela Dr

Dover St

N
orm

a D
r

Driveway
Fair Dr

Bueno St

Edith C
t

M
ary C

 D
r

M
argo C

t

Pueblo Pl

Burnette C
t

Alberta Dr

G
eraldine C

t

W
 Pueblo Pl

Lonnie D
r

La Pintura L
n

Ruth Dr

V
IN

E T
R

A
IL

Sutherland Dr

Valerie L
n

Susan C
t

Patrick C
t

Joyce C
t

G
en

ev
a 

C
t

Janette C
t

Carol Dr

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

West Pueblo / Linda Vista (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



W Pueblo Ave
M

assa D
r

R
ancho D

r

W Park Ave

Donna Dr

D
rivew

ay

Bayw
ood L

n

Bradford St

Rollingwood Dr

Haz
elw

oo
d D

r

Rohlffs Way

West Pueblo / West Park (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Browns Valley Rd

K
ingston Ave

C
ha

rl
so

n 
W

ay

Shadow Hill Ln

Bromley Ct

Browns Valley / Kingston (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



W F St

D
rivew

ay

Solano Ave

D
onw

ood Ln

W
al

de
n 

L
n

D
rivew

ay

D
rivew

ay

West F / Solano (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Te
rr

ac
e 

D
r

Wyatt Ave

Bi
rk

da
le

 D
r

Terra Verde Dr

Sa
ff

ro
n 

C
t

Terrace / Wyatt (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Cayetano Dr

M
al

la
rd

 C
t

Te
rr

ac
e 

D
r

S 
Te

rr
ac

e 
D

r

Tw
in C

reeks C
t

Terrace / Mallard (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



W
ilkins Ave

Shetler Ave

D
rivew

ay

Wilkins / Shetler (100% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Silverado Trl

Saratoga Dr

Sage Way

Driveway

Liberty D
r

Sousa Ln

Silverado / Saratoga (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Imola Ave

Shetler Ave

Sh
ur

tle
ff

 A
ve

S 
Te

rr
ac

e 
D

r

Kansas Ave

C
or

on
ad

o 
Av

e

London Way

Republic Ave

Pa
rr

ish
 R

d

M
ar

sh
al

l A
ve

W
ilkins Ave

Holmes Ave

M
ay

fa
ir

 D
r

Whitney Ave
Sylvia Ct

N Oak Dr

C
ed

ar
 D

r

Po
lle

y 
D

r

Lisa Ct

Belvedere Ct

Driveway

Hopkins Ln

Shar Cir
DrivewayDriveway

N Oak Dr

Hopkins Ln

Imola / Parrish (93% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Public Institutional

Rural Residential

Napa State Hospital *
* Part of the outer boundary under local policy for purposes of determining if perimeter of area is "substantially surrounded"

Attachment Three



Silverado Trl

Stonecre
st D

r

Syar Dr

Ashlar Dr

W
oo

dl
an

d D
r

A
cacia Ave

D
rivew

ay

H
illside Ave

Hag
en

 R
d

H
ol

ly
 C

t

O
akcrest C

t

D
rivew

ay

H
illside Ave

Silverado / Stonecrest (82% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Agricultural Resource

Attachment Three



Imola Ave

Juniper Cir

Te
ja

s A
ve

Muir St

W
ild

w
oo

d 
C

t

R
us

se
ll 

St

So
m

m
er

 S
t

Bl
ac

k 
W

al
nu

t L
n

Perkins St

Acacia Dr

Imola / Tejas (71% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Public Institutional

Rural Residential

Napa State Hospital *
* Part of the outer boundary under local policy for purposes of determining if perimeter of area is "substantially surrounded"

Attachment Three



Hillside Dr

Shurtleff Ave

Peppergrass St

Cayetano Dr

Autumn Creek Ct

A
nd

er
se

n 
R

an
ch

 L
n

Shurtleff / Hillside (70% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Three



D
ev

ita
 D

r

Hilltop Dr

Devita / Hilltop (50% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Three



Te
rr

ac
e 

D
r

Saratoga Dr

C
ap

ito
la

 D
r

Liberty Dr

Lu
go

 L
n

M
al

la
rd

 C
t

Erin Way

M
al

la
rd

 D
r

Tristen Ln

C
ap

ito
la

 D
r

Saratoga Dr

Liberty Dr

Saratoga / Capitola (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Shurtleff Ave

Cayetano Dr

Driveway

Le
xi

ng
to

n 
C

t

Peppergrass St

Cayetano Ct

Autumn Creek Ct

Shurtleff / Cayetano (100% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Fo
st

er
 R

d

G
ra

nd
vi

ew
 D

r

Hilton Ave

Hilton Ave

Foster / Grandview (81% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Three



Redwood Rd

Lynn Dr

R
euben C

t

H
id

de
n 

Va
lle

y 
Ln

Cambridge Ct

W
estview Dr

Redwood / Lynn (79% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Agricultural Resource

Attachment Three



Basalt R
d

Kaiser Rd
St

at
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 2
21

D
ri

ve
w

ay

Sy
ar

 W
ay

Enterprise Way

Latour Ct

Enterprise Ct

N
ap

a 
Va

lle
y 

C
or

po
ra

te
 D

r

Driveway

D
ri

ve
w

ay

Driveway

Driv
ew

ay

Driv
ew

ay

D
ri

ve
w

ay

Driveway

Basalt / Kaiser (94% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Industrial

Not Subject to Measure P

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Public Institutional

Attachment Three



R
edw

ood R
d

Broadm
oor Dr

M
on

tan
a D

r

Driveway

Redwood / Montana (76% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Agricultural Resource

Attachment Three



Pe
nn

y 
L

n

Juanita St

M
ol

in
a 

St

Basque Ct

Laredo St

Madrid Ct

Penny / Madrid (66% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Attachment Three



Forest Dr

Redwood Rd

C
am

ill
a 

D
r

Fores
t L

n

Remington Ct

Redwood / Forest (59% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Agricultural Resource

Attachment Three



Laurel St

Griggs Ln

Riordan Ln

Hilltop Dr

Hilltop / Griggs (56% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Devita / Hilltop #

Attachment Three



Big Ranch Rd

El C
entro

 Ave

Trower A
ve

Garfie
ld Ln

Driv
eway

Dillo
n Dr

Jefferson St
Rosewood Ln

Solom
on Ave Stover St

W
illis DrRegina Dr

H
eather Ln

Pheasant Ln

Old Vine W
ay

Villa Ln

H
am

ilton St

Valley C
lub C

ir

Sierra Ave

Culbertson Ct

Solomon Ct

Driveway

Driv
eway

Driv
eway

Driveway

Driv
eway

D
rivew

ay

Big Ranch / Rosewood (55% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Agricultural Resource

Attachment Three



Fo
st

er
 R

d

G
ol

de
n 

G
at

e 
D

r

State H
ighw

ay 29

D
rivew

ay

G
ra

nd
vi

ew
 D

r

G
reenbach St

Canterbury Dr

N
B SR

29 O
ff Im

ola

Hilton Ave

Eva St

Saint Francis C
ir

Barry St
Village Pkwy

Arthur St

Secretariat St

Gerald St

Golden Gate Cir

SB SR
29 O

n Im
ola

A
ffi

rm
ed

 S
t

Spyglass C
t

Sea Hero Ct

N
ee

dl
es

 C
t

Saint Francis Ct

St
at

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
 2

9

Driveway

Hilton Ave

Foster / Golden Gate (52% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Rural Residential

Not Subject to Measure P

Foster / Grandview

#

Attachment Three



Pe
nn

y 
L

n

Imola Ave

D
ri

ve
w

ayW
in

tu
n 

C
t

Driveway

Penny / Imola (50% Surrounded)
Legend

City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Attachment Three



Imola Ave

State H
ighw

ay 221

Driveway

C
ed

ar
 D

r

Madrone Dr

Sp
ru

ce
 D

r

Jam
es D

iem
er D

r

Magnolia Dr

El
de

r 
D

r

Basalt R
d

S Oak Dr

Redwood Dr

Streblow Dr

R
oy Patrick D

r

N Oak Dr

Birch Dr

Pe
nn

y 
L

n

Tr
ab

aj
o 

L
n

Pa
tto

n 
Av

e

Pi
ne

 D
r

Juniper Cir

Sycamore Dr

A
ca

ci
a 

D
r

Te
ja

s A
ve

Cypress Cir

Enterprise Ct

Enterprise Way

N
av

ar
re

 S
t

W Imola Ave

G
ra

na
da

 S
t

Sh
ur

tle
ff

 A
ve

M
ap

le
 D

r

Whitney Ave

Driveway

Madrone Dr

Driveway

Driveway

D
ri

ve
w

ay

D
rivew

ay

D
ri

ve
w

ay Driveway

D
ri

ve
w

ay

Driveway

Driv
ew

ay

D
ri

ve
w

ay

Napa State Hospital / County Jail (35% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Industrial

Not Subject to Measure P

Public Institutional

Napa State Hospital

County Jail

Study Area

Mineral Resources

Rural Residential

Attachment Three



Broadw
ay

Watson Ln

Paoli L
oop R

d

Lom
bard R

d

Napa Junction Rd

M
ai

n 
St

Hess Dr

R
el

ia
nt

 W
ay

Theresa Ave

Driveway

Klamath Ct

D
rivew

ay

Broadw
ay

Watson / Paoli Loop (77% Surrounded)
Legend

City of American Canyon
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Industrial

Not Subject to Measure P

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Attachment Three



Po
rt

 S

Champagne S
C

ha
m

pa
gn

e E

C
la

re
t S

Foothill Blvd

Sh
er

ry
 S

Washington St

Calistoga Wastewater Pond (50% Surrounded)

Legend
City of Calistoga
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Calistoga
Sphere of Influence

Agricultural Resource

Not Subject to Measure P

Prime Agricultural Land
(CA Gov Code 56064)

Attachment Three



Yount St

Washington St

State Highway 29

Domaine Chandon Commercial Site (50% Surrounded)
Legend

Town of Yountville
Jurisdictional Boundary
Town of Yountville
Sphere of Influence
Agricultural Resource

Not Subject to Measure P

Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Attachment Three



Br
oa

dw
ay

Green Island Rd

Ell
iot

t D
r

State Highway 12

Driveway

S K
ell

y R
d

Eucalyptus Dr

Rio Del Mar

American Canyon Rd

State Highway 29

Airport Blvd

Da
nr

os
e D

r

Wetlands Edge Rd

James Rd

Donaldson Way

Crawford Way

Melvin Rd

W American Canyon Rd

Theresa Ave

Flosden Rd

Br
oa

dw
ay

St
ate

 H
igh

wa
y 2

9

American Canyon Rd

Broadway
Broadway

City of American Canyon
Legend

City of American Canyon
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of American Canyon
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Agricultural Resource

Industrial

Watson Lane / Paoli Loop#

Not Subject to Measure P

Public Institutional

Attachment Four



Foothill Blvd

Tu
bb

s L
n

Silverado Trl

State Highway 29

Lin
co

ln 
Av

e

Du
na

we
al 

Ln

Petrifi
ed Forest Rd

State Highway 29

City of Calistoga

Legend
City of Calistoga
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Calistoga
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Agricultural Resource

Rural Residential

Calistoga
Wastewater Pond#

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Four



State Highway 29

Solano Ave

1st Ave

Redwood Rd

Dry Creek Rd

Du
hig

 R
d

Old Sonoma Rd

Jefferson St

Mont
ice

llo 
Rd

Fo
ste

r R
d

Hagen RdTrancas St

Buhman Ave

State Highway 12

Silverado Trl

Big Ranch Rd

Linda Vista Ave

Las Amigas Rd

4th
 Av

e

Imola Ave

3rd St

Coombsville Rd

Main St

Vichy Ave

Soscol Ave

Go
lde

n G
ate

 D
r

Salvador Ave

3rd
 Av

e

Trower Ave

Laurel St

W Imola Ave

North Ave

Th
om

ps
on

 Av
e

1st St

W Pueblo Ave

Cuttings Wharf Rd

State Highway 221

Orchard Ave

2n
d A

ve

California Blvd

Byway E

N Kelly Rd

Hardman Ave

Co
om

bs
 St

Shetler Ave

Browns Valley Rd

El Centro Ave

Bell Ln

Te
rra

ce
 D

r

Yajome St

Sierra Ave

4th St

Pe
nn

y L
n

Lincoln Ave
State Highway 29

Silverado Trl

1st St
1st St

City of Napa

Legend
City of Napa
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of Napa
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Agricultural Resource

Study Area

Napa State Hospital

#

Not Subject to Measure P

Public Institutional

Urban Residential

Rural Residential

Mineral Resources

County Jail

#

Big Ranch Road
Specific Plan Area#

Attachment Four



Main St

Silverado Trl

Sp
rin

g S
t

De
er 

Pa
rk 

Rd

Pope 
St

Ho
we

ll M
ou

nt
ain

 R
d

Pra
tt A

ve

Mad
ron

a A
ve

Lodi Ln

Sulphur Springs Ave

Spring Mountain Rd

Zinfan
del L

nLewellin
g Ln

Oak Ave

Ad
am

s S
t

Hu
nt 

Av
e

Crane Ave

Sa
nit

ari
um

 RdGlass Mountain Rd

Grayson Ave

State Highway 29

Co
nn

 Va
lle

y R
d

State Highway 29

City of St. Helena
Legend

City of St. Helena
Jurisdictional Boundary
City of St. Helena
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Agricultural Resource

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Four



State Highway 29
Washington St

Solano Ave

Yount St

Yountvil
le C

ross 
Rd

Yount Mill Rd

Madison St

Town of Yountville
Legend

Town of Yountville
Jurisdictional Boundary
Town of Yountville
Sphere of Influence
Agriculture, Watershed &
Open Space

Agricultural Resource

Domaine Chandon
CL Zoning

#

Not Subject to Measure P

Attachment Four


	10-5-20_5a_Minutes_8-3-20.pdf
	MINUTES 8-3-20.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF NAPA COUNTY
	REGULAR* MEETING MINUTES OF AUGUST 3, 2020
	1. WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER; ROLL CALL
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3. APPROVAL OF AMENDED AGENDA
	VOTE:
	4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	5. CONSENT ITEMS
	VOTE:
	7. ACTION ITEMS
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	VOTE:
	9. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING



	10-5-20_6b_WorkProgram.pdf
	6b_WorkProgram_Attachment1.pdf
	10-5-20


	10-5-20_8a_Islands.pdf
	8a_Islands_Attachment2.pdf
	Sheet1





